
TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
Mayor Tara Walter 
Vice-Mayor John Anderson 
Councilmember Bill Hawkins 
Councilmember Kristen Larsen 
Councilmember Karen Wall 
Councilmember Michelle Cordes 
Councilmember Judy Hughes 
 
 
Tuesday, January 22, 2019 
 

Florence Town Hall
775 N. Main Street

Florence, AZ 85132
(520) 868-7500

www.florenceaz.gov
Meet 1st and 3rd Mondays

6:00 PM

____________________________________________________________________________ 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the Town of Florence Council and to 
the general public that a Regular Meeting of the Florence Town Council will be held on Tuesday, 
January 22, 2019, at 6:00 p.m., in the Florence Town Council Chambers, located at 775 N. Main 
Street, Florence, Arizona.  The agenda for this meeting is as follows:    
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
1. ROLL CALL:     Walter __, Hawkins__, Anderson__, Wall____, Larsen___, Cordes__,  

    Hughes___. 
 
2. MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
4. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town Council.  
Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual Councilmembers may respond 
to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask 
that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall not discuss 
or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly 
noticed for discussion and legal action. 

 
5. PRESENTATIONS 

 
a. Presentation on upcoming special events from February to April 2019. (Alison Feliz) 

 
b. Presentation of new GIS (Geographic Information System) interactive online map for traffic 

counts of various roadways in the greater Florence area. (Victor Cantu) 
 

6. CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of 
the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the 
time the agenda item is called.  

 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



a. Authorization to award a contract with Coolidge Engine & Pump, to brush, bail, clean, video, 
perforate and install new casing to Well #4 (CIP WU-84 Pump Inspection and Rebuild), in 
an amount not to exceed $42,527.58. (Chris Salas) 

 
b. Approval to accept funds from Arizona Department of Homeland Security, to purchase an 

OPSG Vehicle to conduct Operation Stonegarden border enforcement activities, in the 
amount of $82,018.  (Jennifer Evans) 
 

c. Approval to purchase five public safety portable radios, from Motorola Solutions, in an 
amount not to exceed $36,784.88. (Dan Hughes) 
 

d. Approval and ratification of the standard Terms of Engagement for legal services approved 
at the June 18, 2018 Council Meeting, as it relates to the expenditures for legal services 
with  Attorney formerly working at Ryley Carlock & Applewhite,  now engaged at Dickinson 
Wright PLLC, and Albert H. Acken, for legal representation of the Town of Florence, in 
regulatory matters, including administrative appeals and potential litigation with respect to 
Matters of Arizona Corporation Commission’s Investigation of Johnson Utilities LLC, and 
Southwest Environmental Utilities. (Clifford Mattice) 

 
e. Approval of the December 3, 2018 Town Council Meeting minutes. 

 
f. Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 

i. September 20, and October 11, 2018 Arts and Culture Commission Minutes 
ii. November 7, 2018 Historic District Advisory Commission Minutes 
iii. October 18, November 15 and December 20, 2018 Planning and Zoning Commission 

Minutes 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Resolution No. 1686-19: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A RESOLUTION OF THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE FLORENCE TOWN 
COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE, EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 22, 2019. (Lisa Garcia) 

 
b. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of PZ-18-36-DR, the Comprehensive Sign Plan for the 

Florence Hospital, APN 211-02-0340, located at 4545 North Hunt Highway, subject to the 
conditions noted in the staff report. (Larry Harmer)  
 

c. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to accept funds from Arizona Department of Homeland 
Security, in the amount of $161,000 for overtime wages, benefits and vehicle mileage to 
conduct OPSG border enforcement activities. (Jennifer Evans) 
 

d. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of entering into an employment agreement with Clifford L. 
Mattice for the position of Town Attorney. (Brent Billingsley) 
 

8. MANAGER’S REPORT 

9. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
10. CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 

 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



11. ADJOURNMENT TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Discussion and possible action to authorize the holding of an Executive Session during the 
Council Meeting for the purposes of discussions or consultations with designated 
representatives of the public body and/or legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-
431.03 (A)(3), (A)(4), and (A)(7) to consider its position and instruct its representatives 
and/or attorneys regarding: 
 

a. Discussion or consultations regarding the Town of Florence intervention in the matter of 
the Arizona Corporation Commission’s investigation into the billing practices and water 
quality issues of Johnson Utilities, LLC before the Commission or in regard to any 
matters involving the Commission’s review, public participation, investigations into the 
operations of Johnson Utilities, LLC and its affiliates including but not limited to 
Southwest Environmental Utilities and Case Numbers: WS-02987A-17-0392; WS-
02987A-18-0151; WS-0987A-18-0050; WS-20878A-18-0330; WS-02987A-18-0329; WS-
02987A-06-0667. 

 
  ADJOURNMENT FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION  

 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the purpose of obtaining 
legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
431.03(A)(3).  One or more members of Council may appear for part or all of the meeting including 
Executive Session telephonically.  
 
POSTED ON JANUARY 16, 2019, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 NORTH MAIN 
STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
*** PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF DISABILITY 
REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY MAY 
REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY CONTACTING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS 
SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE 
ACCOMMODATION. ***  



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 5a. 

MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Services 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Alison Feliz, Recreation Coordinator 
 
SUBJECT:  Presentation on Upcoming Special Events 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  
Subject:  Upcoming Special Events  Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
Page 1 of 1 

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Presentation by Alison Feliz, Recreation Coordinator, on upcoming special events from 
February to April 2019. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
There are several special events planned from February to April 2019.  Staff will give a 
brief overview of both internal and external special events to promote and and provide 
information to residents and visitors, so they can attend or volunteer. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

Not Applicable 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

Not Applicable 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Presentation  



Town of Florence 
Community Services 

Special Events

Town of Florence 
Community Services 

Special Events
February to April 2019February to April 2019



Upcoming Town sponsored 
events:
Upcoming Town sponsored 
events:

Concerts in the Park

Home Tour

Pooch Party

Easter Eggstravaganza

Road to Country Thunder

Movie in the Park



Concerts in the ParkConcerts in the Park

 Fridays in February 
 5:15 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.
 Padilla Park

 Fridays in February 
 5:15 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.
 Padilla Park



34th Annual Historic Home Tour34th Annual Historic Home Tour

 Saturday, February 9th

 “Small Town, Big History – Living 
within Adobe Walls”

 10:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.
 Historic Downtown Main Street

 Saturday, February 9th

 “Small Town, Big History – Living 
within Adobe Walls”

 10:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.
 Historic Downtown Main Street



Pooch Party Pooch Party 

 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m.
 Saturday, February 23rd

Central Bark Park
 Vaccinations and Licensing
 Pet adoptions available

 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m.
 Saturday, February 23rd

Central Bark Park
 Vaccinations and Licensing
 Pet adoptions available



Road to
Country Thunder
Road to
Country Thunder

 Saturday, April 6th

 Historic Downtown Main Street
 5:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.
 Food Vendors & Beer Garden

 Saturday, April 6th

 Historic Downtown Main Street
 5:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.
 Food Vendors & Beer Garden



Easter 
Eggstravaganza
Easter 
Eggstravaganza
Saturday, April 13th

9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.
Heritage Park
Partnering with Pinal County Resource Fair
Pancake Breakfast



Movie in the ParkMovie in the Park

 Saturday, April 27th

 Disney’s “Coco”
 Aquatic Center Multi-Purpose Fields
 Sundown approximately 7:00 p.m.

 Saturday, April 27th

 Disney’s “Coco”
 Aquatic Center Multi-Purpose Fields
 Sundown approximately 7:00 p.m.



Upcoming Events at Aero Modeler ParkUpcoming Events at Aero Modeler Park

Jan 12th

Florence 
Desert Fly In

Feb 9th

Florence 
Model Air Show

March 9th

Warbirds over 
Florence



Upcoming Events at the Rodeo GroundsUpcoming Events at the Rodeo Grounds

Feb 10th

Prison Run

Feb 23rd and 24th

Queen Creek
Jr. Rodeo

March 16th

Ranch Rodeo

March 31st

Arizona
High School Rodeo



Upcoming Events at
Anthem Parkside & Sun City Anthem
@ Merrill Ranch

Upcoming Events at
Anthem Parkside & Sun City Anthem
@ Merrill Ranch

Feb 2nd

Arts in the 
Park

March 2nd

Arts in the 
Park

March 23rd

Spring Festival

April 6th

Anthem 
Triathlon

April 6th

Arts in the 
Park



Upcoming External EventsUpcoming External Events

Feb 9th

Assumption Parish 
Church Festival

Feb 16th

Classic Car Show

March 16th

Fashion Show at 
Women's Club

March 30th

Little League 
Opening 

Ceremonies

March 30th

75th Anniversary of 
GI Bill

April 6th

Dino Dash
April 11th to 14th

Country Thunder



Questions?Questions?



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
5b.  

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Information Technology 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Victor Cantu, GIS Coordinator 
 
SUBJECT:  Online Interactive Traffic Volume Map for Florence 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  
nd
Subject: Online Interactive Traffic Volume Map for Florence          Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:   
 
Presentation of new Geographic Information System (GIS) interactive online map for 
traffic counts of various roadways in the greater Florence area. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:      
 
Traffic counts for various roadways in the greater Florence area were obtained by Field 
Data Services of Arizona, in September 2018.  This data was then provided to our GIS 
Coordinator Victor Cantu, who converted the information to an interactive map format that 
is now available on the Town website. 
 

A brief demonstration of this new online mapping tool will be presented to Council. 

A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN:     

 
Presentation only 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN:     
 
Presentation only 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:     
 
None 

 
 2  Reading 

 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 



 

Subject: Online Interactive Traffic Volume Map for Florence          Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 6a. 

 
MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works Department 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:   Christopher A. Salas,  
                                       Public Works Director/Town Engineer 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
st
 
Subject:  Coolidge Engine & Pump WU-84 Well #4                                                    Meeting Date: January 22, 2019 
1 of 2 

 
SUBJECT:   Coolidge Engine & Pump Contract for Well #4 – 
CIP WU-84 Pump Inspection and Rebuild 

 1  Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:   Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    

 Leadership and Governance     Partnership and Relationships        Transportation and 

Infrastructure      Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:   
 
Authorization to award a contract with Coolidge Engine & Pump to brush, bail, clean, 
video, perforate and install new casing to Well #4 (CIP WU-84 Pump Inspection and 
Rebuild), in an amount not to exceed $42,527.58. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:   
 
Via Bid Tabulation, and following the Procurement Policy, a Bid Tabulation form was 
approved by the Finance Department and the Town Manager, for $13,300, on October 
10, 2018.  Once Well #4 was brushed, bailed and videoed, the decision to perforate 
(Change Order #1 $4,100.00) was made to enhance the ability of the well to perform.  
Due to the age of the casing, the casing was damaged, and the perforations were not 
successful. A new casing needs to be installed, which resulted in Change Order #2 for 
$22,300.00.  The total amount shall not exceed $42,527.58. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
Currently Well #4 is disassembled and not in working order.  If the rebuild is not 
completed, the well will remain un-usable.  
 
 
 
 
 



 
Subject:  Coolidge Engine & Pump WU-84 Well #4                                                    Meeting Date: January 22, 2019 
2 of 2 

A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
Planned improvements would get completed on Well #4, allowing the Town to use the 
well and then complete well improvements on Well #5. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The contract amount shall not exceed $42,527.58. 
 
Services will be obtained following the Town’s Purchasing Policy, Section 5.63 Purchases 
of $25,000 or More (specifically, 5.6321 of Vendor Selection) 
 
5.632 Vendor Selection 
 

5.6321 Alternative purchase methods are identified if approved by necessity or by 
the Town Manager as indicated by Emergency/Sole Source Purchase, cooperative 
purchase, state contract or any other method authorized.  The Finance Director 
reviews for budget availability and bidding procedures.  The Town Manager reviews 
for need. 

 
4.12 Purchasing Policy  
  

Department Heads must approve all purchases regardless of dollar value. This does 
not preclude the Department Head from obtaining the necessary approval from the 
Town Manager and/or Town Council, nor does this allow them to have signature 
authority on contracts.  The Town Manager has signature authority on purchases up 
to $24,999.  Town Council is required on any purchases of $25,000 or more. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
 Approved Bid Tabulation Form October 10, 2018 
 Approved Bid Tabulation Form December 21, 2018 
 Change Order #1 
 Change Order #2 
 















TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 6b. 

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2019 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 

STAFF PRESENTER: Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst   

SUBJECT: Acceptance of FFY2018 Operation Stonegarden 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  
nd
Subject:  Acceptance of FFY2018 Operation Stonegarden Funds for OPSG Vehicle Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

(OPSG) Funds from Arizona Department of Homeland Security 
for an OPSG Vehicle   

 2  Reading
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 

Motion to accept funds from Arizona Department of Homeland Security in the amount of 
$82,018 to purchase an OPSG Vehicle to conduct Operation Stonegarden border 
enforcement activities.  

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

The Florence Police Department was awarded funds as part of a cooperative effort to 
address constantly changing threats due to border-related crime and violence. The 
funds will be used to purchase an OPSG 4x4 vehicle with police equipment. The 
equipment includes a mobile data computer, P25 mobile radio, contraband kit, and 
vehicle spotlight camera system.  

A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

The Town of Florence will not accept $82,018 in grant funds from Arizona Department 
of Homeland Security. 

A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Town of Florence will accept $82,018 in grant funds from Arizona Department of 
Homeland Security. 



Subject:  Acceptance of FFY2018 Operation Stonegarden Funds for OPSG Vehicle Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no matching fund requirement for this grant. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Subrecipient Agreement 18-AZDOHS-OPSG-180429-02 



















































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 6c. 

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2019   
 
DEPARTMENT:  Police Department 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Daniel Hughes, Police Chief   
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
Subject:  Purchase of Five Public Safety Portable Radios               Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019   
Page 1 of 2 

SUBJECT: Purchase of five public safety portable radios  
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve the purchase of five public safety portable radios, from Motorola 
Solutions, in an amount not to exceed $36,784.88. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Florence Police Department was awarded $36,798 in grant funds for the Florence 
Public Safety Interoperable Communications Project.  The grant funds will be used to 
purchase five P25 compliant dual band 800 MHz portable radios for the department. 
The Town of Florence requested $175,681 to purchase 21 portable radios and 
associated equipment to replace the existing radios that are being phased out.  The 
Arizona Department of Homeland Security was able to award only partial funding for the 
project due to the number of applications submitted and the amount of funding allocated 
to the program.  The Town of Florence will use State Contract ADSPO13-036880 to 
purchase the radios from Motorola Solutions.  
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

The Town of Florence will not purchase five public safety portable radios and will not 
use the Arizona Department of Homeland Security grant funds. 
 
 
 
 



Subject:  Purchase of Five Public Safety Portable Radios               Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019   
Page 2 of 2 

A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Town of Florence will purchase five public safety portable radios and use grant 
funds from Arizona Department of Homeland Security. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The Town of Florence will purchase the radios for $36,784.88 and submit a 
reimbursement request to Arizona Department of Homeland Security.  There is no 
matching fund requirement for this grant. There is $61,360 allocated in the FY2018-
2019 Capital Improvement Plan budget for public safety radios. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Bid Tabulation Sheet 
Motorola Solutions Quote 175451 























 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
6d.  

MEETING DATE:   January 22, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Legal 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:   Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 
 
SUBJECT:   Approval and Ratification of the Engagement and 
Representation Agreement and Standard Terms of Engagement 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  
nd
Subject: Legal Services with Dickinson Wright, &   Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
and Albert H. Acken-Revised for Lawyer’s Change of Firms.     
Page 1 of 2 

for legal services with Dickinson Wright, P.L.L.C. and Albert H. 
Acken-Revised for Lawyer’s Change of Firms.

 2  Reading 
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    
 Leadership and Governance     Partnerships and Relationships     Transportation and Infrastructure 
 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve and ratify the Engagement and Representation Agreement dated 
January 3, 2019, and Standard Terms of Engagement with Dickinson Wright, P.L.L.C., 
and Albert H. Acken, for legal representation of the Town of Florence, in regulatory 
matters in connection with the Arizona Corporation Commission proceedings 
concerning Johnson Utilities, and Southwest Environmental Utilities, (the “ACC 
regulatory proceedings”). 
 
Staff recommends approving and ratifying the revised Engagement and Representation 
Agreement, letter dated January 3, 2019, and Standard Terms of Engagement with 
Dickinson Wright, P.L.L.C.  and Albert H. Acken. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
In 2018, the Town Council authorized intervention in the matter of the Arizona 
Corporation Commission’s investigation into billing practices and water quality issues of 
Johnson Utilities, LLC, (Docket No. WS-02987A-18-0050) and in the matter of water 
outages (Docket No. WS-02987a-18-0151).  Administrative Law Judge Harping issued 
a Recommended Order and Opinion that concluded that the evidence presented in the 
Arizona Corporation Commission hearings supported a decision to appoint an interim 
manager at Johnson Utilities.   
 
On July 20, 2018, the Town Council adopted Resolution No. 1673-18, authorizing the 
Town of Florence, to partner with the Town of Queen Creek, to seek appointment 
through the Arizona Corporation Commission (ACC), to be installed as Interim Manager 



Subject: Legal Services with Dickinson Wright, &   Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
and Albert H. Acken-Revised for Lawyer’s Change of Firms.     
Page 2 of 2 

for Johnson Utilities, L.L.C., with the Town of Queen Creek, acting in the lead role in the 
Phoenix Active Management Area.  The Town desired to protect the health, safety and 
welfare of its citizens and other residents in the southeast valley region.  The ACC 
regulatory matters are ongoing. 
 
Mr. Acken recently changed employment from the law firm of Ryley, Carlock & 
Applewhite, to Dickinson Wright, and it is necessary for the Town to either retain the 
former law firm or enter a new engagement agreement with Mr. Acken, and his new law 
firm.  This action approves and ratifies the Town’s engagement of Dickinson Wright, 
P.L.L.C., for legal representation of the Town, in the ACC regulatory matters, including 
administrative appeals and potential litigation. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Town retains Albert H. Acken (and Dickinson Wright, P.L.L.C.) as its lawyer for the 
ACC regulatory proceedings. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

The Town does not retain Albert H. Acken (and Dickinson Wright, P.L.LC.) as its lawyer 
for the ACC regulatory proceedings. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The expenses for legal fees and related services, including retention of experts and 
consultants, are budgeted annually based upon the projected activities for the 
proceedings during the fiscal year.  The Town Council previously approved 
expenditures for this representation up to $200,000 for the current fiscal year. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Engagement and Representation Agreement and Dickinson Wright P.L.L.C. Standard 
Terms of Engagement dated January 3, 2019. 



















MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
DECEMBER 3, 2018, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 
LOCATED AT 775 N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.   
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Walter called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:     
 
Present:  Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Anderson, Wall, Larsen 
 

Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2018 
Page 1 of 15 

MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor Walter called for a moment of silence. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Walter led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the 
jurisdiction of the Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  
Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, 
members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open call 
to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 
Mr. Donald Woolridge, Florence Resident, thanked Mayor Walter and Councilmember Larsen for 
the kindness they have shown his wife, Vice-Mayor Woolridge.  He read a passage for Vice-Mayor 
Woolridge pertaining to her future endeavors and thanked her for allowing him to witness how she 
has personified what it means to be a servant.   
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of adopting the November 5 and November 19, 2018 
Town Council Minutes. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Vice-Mayor Woolridge, and carried (6-0) to 
adopt the November 5 and November 19, 2018 Town Council Minutes.  
 
SWEARING IN OF NEW COUNCIL 
 
Honorable Roger A. Valdez swore in Councilmember Anderson, Councilmember Cordes and 
Councilmember Hughes.  
 
ROLL CALL:    

 
Present:  Walter, Hawkins, Anderson, Wall, Larsen, Cordes, Hughes 
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2018 
Page 2 of 15 

PUBLIC HEARINGS AND PRESENTATIONS  
 
Public Hearing to receive citizens’ comments on the Land Use Assumptions and the 
Infrastructure Improvement Plan. 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that this is the third time that this item 
has come before Council.  Staff previously explained what the Infrastructure Improvement Plan 
and impact fees were when they were going through the consultant process.  The Town also had 
a community and stakeholder’s meeting.  The step at tonight’s meeting is to hear public comments 
and hold a public hearing.  Staff has provided an overview of the steps involved to develop a 
policy, which will require a number of public hearings, followed by adoption.     She explained that 
that there is a 70-day requirement in order to be able to have the fees posted before the Town 
can collect any type of increase.  The fees would take effect July 1, 2019, if Council approves.   
 
Mayor Walter opened the public hearing. There being no public comment, Mayor Walter closed 
the public hearing.  
 
Public Hearing on an application received from Teresa June Morse, Lidias Cocina at Old 
Pueblo, Liquor License application, located at 505 S. Main Street, Florence, Arizona, for a 
Series 12 Restaurant License, and for Council recommendation for approval or disapproval 
of said license.  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that the Town received an application 
and posted the location, as required for the 20 days.  Staff has not received any comments either 
in favor of, or against.  She stated that staff is asking Council to make a recommendation for 
approval to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control.      
 
Mayor Walter opened the public hearing.  There being no public comment, Mayor Walter closed 
the public hearing.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and Carried (6-0) to 
recommend approval of the Series 12 Restaurant License received from Teresa June Morse, 
Lidias Cocina at Old Pueblo, to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control. 
 
Presentation of Community Appreciation Award to Vallarie Woolridge for 14 years of 
service.  
 
Mayor Walter presented Ms. Woolridge with a plaque in appreciation for her dedication and 
service to the Town of Florence.  She stated that Ms. Woolridge has served the community 
selflessly and has taught many people valuable life lessons.   
 
Ms. Woolridge stated that she thanked God for the opportunity to serve her community for 14 
years.  She also thanked her husband, Donald Woolridge, who sacrificed a lot of time away from 
him while she attended to the Town’s business.  She also thanked the voters in the community 
who continued to trust and have faith in her that she would be able to handle the Town’s business.  
She appreciates all the support that she has received.   
 
Ms. Woolridge thanked the Council.  She stated that they have performed admirably and handled 
the Town’s business in a professional manner.  She thanked the staff and stated that they have 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2018 
Page 3 of 15 

been a pleasure to work with, who, in her opinion, are the most professional staff in the State of 
Arizona.   
 
Ms. Woolridge stated that she is proud of what they have accomplished while she was on the 
Council.   
 
Presentation of Community Appreciation Award to Rebecca Guilin for four years of 
service. 
 
Mayor Walter presented Ms. Guilin with a plaque in appreciation for her dedication and service to 
the Town of Florence.  She stated that Ms. Guilin had worked for the Town for 19 years. 
 
Ms. Guilin stated that she worked for the Council, retired, served on the Council for almost four 
years and recently began working for the Town again.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that Ms. Guilin has a wealth of knowledge and experience regarding the 
Town’s finances.    She has been an asset to the Council with regards to budgets and helping the 
Town plan accordingly, based on the budget.   
 
Ms. Guilin stated that being on the Council has been a wonderful experience and working with 
the Town has been a joy.  She thanked everyone.   
 
Update on the Florence Hospital from Jacob Golich, President of Mountain Vista Medical 
Center. 
 
Mr. Brent Billingsley, Town Manager, stated that the Town has received a multitude of phone calls 
regarding the future of Anthem Hospital.  Staff has been having meetings with regards to the 
hospital and is proud to work with individuals who will improve the facilities and the services to 
the Town.   

 
Mr. Jacob Golich, President of Mountain Vista Medical Center, provided a presentation, in which 
he outlined the following: 
- Steward Health Care System 

 Have facilities nationwide – 36 hospitals 
 Five regions across the US 

 Facility is led and ran by physicians 
 Top leadership are all physicians, many of which are still practicing 

- History of Mountain Vista Medical Center 
 Opened July 23, 2007 (ahead of schedule); licensed for 178 beds, all private rooms 
 2008 partnered with Midwestern University to provide education and training for medical 

students 
 2010 received Cardiac Receiving Center designation by the Arizona Department of Health 

Services  
 2011 accredited as a Cycle III Chest Pain Center by the Society of Chest Pain Centers 
 2011 designated as a Primary Stroke Center by DNV 
 2011 received Level IV Trauma Center designation by the Arizona Department of Health 

Services 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2018 
Page 4 of 15 

 2012 formed partnership with City of Mesa Fire and Medical Department that pairs nurse 
practitioners and physician assistants with paramedics to respond and treat patients who 
call 911 that have low-acuity medical needs.  

 2012 designated as the first Provisional Level III Trauma Center in the Valley by the Arizona 
Dept. of Health Services  

 2012 attained American Heart/Stroke Association’s Get with the Guidelines Silver Quality 
Achievement Award and was recognized as a recipient of the Target: Stroke Honor Roll 

 2013 launched partnership with Midwestern University family medicine, general surgery 
and internal medicine residents, PAs, CRNAs and nurse practitioners 

 2013 designated as a Level III Trauma Center that is Arizona Dept. of Health Services and 
American College of Surgeons verified (recertified every three years for both entities) 

 2013 attained American Heart/Stroke Association’s Get with the Guidelines Gold Plus 
Quality Achievement Award and was recognized as a recipient of the Target: Stroke Honor 
Roll 

 2016 established gastroenterology fellowship with Midwestern University  
 500 physicians 
 Great partnerships with other facilities  
 Has residency program with 51 physicians  
 GI fellowship 

- Mission and Values 
 “We are highly motivated and compassionate people, using advanced systems and 

technology, to become the health care provider of choice and to improve the quality of life 
for the individuals and community we serve.” 

- Quality 
 Level III Trauma Center 
 Cardiac Receiving Center 
 Chest Pain Center 
 Primary Stroke Center 
 AHA/ASA Get with the Guidelines Stroke Gold Plus Quality Achievement Award Recipient 

and Target:  Stroke Honor Roll  
 Highlights 
 MRSA Infection Rate:  0.09 (better than national average) 
 C-Diff Infection Rate: 0.24 (better than national average) 
 Central Line associated blood line infection rate: 0.25 (better than national average)  

- Florence Hospital at Anthem 
 28.6 miles from Mountain Vista Medical Center or 40 to 45-minute drive time 
 36 Inpatient Beds 

o 16 inpatient beds are locked down in a secured unit for prisoners 
 22 Emergency Department Beds 
 Surgical Suite, Diagnostic Imaging, CAP Accredited Laboratory 
 200+ Physicians on Medical Staff (but very few of them active) 

 About Florence, Arizona  
 Current Population – 168,136 people within 20 miles radius of Florence 
 Located in Pinal County and home to 3 federal and 1 state prisons 
 Age - Median age is 31.6  
 Primary Industries are Government (27%), Corrections (50%) and Education (16%) 
 Income Level - Average Income: $50,890, Median Household Income: $85,187 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2018 
Page 5 of 15 

 Primary Competitors for Emergency Services 
 Banner Ironwood Medical Center 
 Casa Grande Regional Medical Center 
 Dignity Health – Mercy Gilbert Medical Center 
 Mountain Vista Medical Center 
 Chandler Regional Medical Center 

 Florence Operation 
 Expands Mountain Vista’s Medical Center service area 
 Breaks the blockade from competitor facilities to the core MVMC’s service area 

(important to keep Banner or Dignity from taking it over) 
 Presence in Florence, AZ will expand our patient panels by 700 attributed patients to 

the Steward Medical Group 
 Immediate ability to improve cost structure of the stand-alone facility as campus of 

MVMC  
 Immediate ability (60-90 days) to expand volumes and patient recognition through 

enrolling both hospitals under the Steward payor contracts and through a concerted 
marketing campaign 

 Near-term opportunity to improve community perception through Steward branding as 
facilities will no longer be out-of-network with major payors, seize the practice of 
balance billing the patient and put the bankruptcy negativity behind them 

 Will transfer out for higher level service, if needed 
 Owners of Gilbert and Florence hospital own the Mountain Vista property as well 

- License application has been submitted to the State of Arizona 
 45 to 60-day process 

- Target date to open will be January 2019 
- Job fair will be on December 12 and 13, 2018  

 Have sent notice to all previous staff members of Anthem Hospital 
 
Mayor Walter inquired what insurances will be accepted at the hospital.  
 
Mr. Golich stated that they will accept all insurances at the hospital. 
 
United Way Presentation on the Town of Florence participation in local drives by Manuela 
Bowler.  

 
Mayor Walter stated that Florence had Make a Difference Day on October 27, 2018 and the Town 
partnered with United Way to make meal boxes.  In total the volunteers made 10,000 meals in 
two hours.  She stated that 5,000 meals will stay in Florence and 5,000 will go to the surrounding 
communities.   
 
Ms. Manuela Bowler, Executive Director, United Way, stated that they have been in the 
community for 38 years.  She stated that they have changed the trajectory and the meals is a 
product of that change.  She stated that Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager, is one of its board 
members and represents Florence and the surrounding area.   
Ms. Bowler stated that one of their initiatives is reading by the third grade.  She stated that 30% 
of kids do not read at capacity by 3rd grade, 30% do not graduate high school and approximately 
30% of the population need continued social assistance.  She stated that Pinal County has an 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2018 
Page 6 of 15 

educational progress monitor and the goal is to have 72% of the 3rd grade at proficient reading 
levels by 2030.  Currently, they are at 42%.   
 
Ms. Bowler stated that they partner with other organizations such as the Rotary Club and Florence 
Women’s Club to promote reading.    She stated that they focus on family financial stability.  She 
stated that you can read and do well in school if you are hungry.  She stated that they also work 
on literacy kits and the Dolly Parton Imagination Library.   
 
Ms. Bowler stated that on Florence’s Make a Difference Day, it was great to load up her vehicle 
with the extra food, not knowing that the other pallet had arrived.  She stated that the Coolidge 
Food Bank was recently robbed, and it was divine intervention because the meals created were 
added to their food basket.   
 
Ms. Bowler stated that they will also provide meals for the Elk’s event.   
 
An Elks’ member spoke on behalf of the Elk’s Feeding Empty Little Tummies Program.  The 
program feeds food-deprived children within the community on weekends when the children aren’t 
in school and the names of the participant remain anonymous.  He stated that they have received 
many donations from the community.  The program has grown every year since its inception four 
years ago.  He stated that last year they had 30,289 items, which equated to 7,659 meals weighing 
11,000 pounds.  He stated that that Arizona ranks second for food deprived children and one in 
four children are food deprived, which is unacceptable.  He stated that they are excited about the 
donation as it will allow the Elk’s to take care of children through the holidays and into the summer.   
 
The Elk’s member stated that last year, nationally, the Elk’s provided the following: 
- $4,790,000 in scholarships to students.   

 This is the single largest, non-government, non-profit donation in the United States.   
- $2,600,000 to veterans 
- $709,000 to drug awareness 
- $12,370,000 in community investments   
 
The Elk’s member stated that the requirements to be an Elk member include: 
- Must be 21 years or older 
- American citizen 
- Believe in God 
 
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of the 
consent agenda unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the time the 
agenda item is called.  
 
Approval to enter in to a Broadband Services Agreement for five-years with Fibaire 
Communications, LLC, dba: AireBeam.  
 
Approval of the Emergency Base Station Agreement, between the Florence Fire 
Department, and Mountain Vista Medical Center.  
Authorization to dispose of the following Town vehicles:  1998 Ford Crown Victoria Police 
Interceptor, 2006 Dodge Charger, 2002 Ford Explorer and 2003 Yamaha 450 YSF Dirt Bike. 
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2018 
Page 7 of 15 

Approval of accepting the register of demands ending October 31, 2018, in the amount of 
$2,648,070.63.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (7-0) 
to approve the Consent Agenda, as written.  
 
NEW BUSINESS  

Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of appointing a member of Council to service as Vice-
Mayor. 
 
Ms. Garcia explained that pursuant to the Town Code, Section 30.05:  At the same meeting at 
which Council is seated, the Council shall designate one of its members as Vice Mayor, who shall 
serve at the pleasure of the Council. The Vice Mayor shall perform the duties of the Mayor during 
his or her absence or disability.  She explained that they will open the floor for nominations and 
explained the process for selecting a Vice-Mayor.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins nominated Councilmember Anderson for Vice-Mayor. 
 
Councilmember accepted the nomination. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Councilmember Hawkins – Yes 
Councilmember Anderson – Yes 
Councilmember Wall – Yes 
Councilmember Larsen – Yes 
Councilmember Cordes – Yes 
Councilmember Hughes – Yes 
Mayor Walter – Yes 
 
Motion Passed: Yes: 7; No: 0 

 
Appointment of Council Liaison Assignments. 
 
Mayor Walter stated that she reached out to all of the Council to see what boards and/or 
commissions they wanted to be liaisons.  She tried her best to accommodate everyone’s requests; 
however, it was not possible to do all.   
 
Mayor Walter appointed the following Councilmembers to the following:   
 
Local Liaison Assignments: 
 
Arts and Culture: Councilmember Hawkins  
Board of Appeal:  Councilmember Hughes 
Historic District Advisory Commission:  Councilmember Cordes     
Industrial Development Authority:  Vice-Mayor Anderson      
Library Advisory Board:  Councilmember Wall        
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board:  Councilmember Hughes     
Planning and Zoning Commission:  Councilmember Hawkins      



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2018 
Page 8 of 15 

Public Safety Retirement (Police and Fire):  Councilmember Larsen     
Teen Youth Commission:  Councilmember Larsen 
Florence Teen Council:  Councilmember Larsen 
 
Regional Liaison Assignments: 
 
Central Arizona Governments (Regional Council):   Mayor Walter                 
Florence Unified School District:  Councilmember Cordes                                                
Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce:  Councilmember Wall                              
Five Parks HOA’s:  Councilmember Hawkins 
Maricopa Association of Governments (Regional Council):  Mayor Walter        
Pinal Mayor’s Monthly Meeting:  Mayor Walter 
Tohono O’odham Village and Gila River Indian Communities:  Councilmember Wall 
Pinal Water Augmentation Authority: Vice-Mayor Anderson     
Pinal Partnership:  Vice-Mayor Anderson                                                                        
 
State Liaison Assignments:  
 
Arizona Legislature:  Mayor Walter         
Leagues of Cities and Towns Resolution Committee:  Mayor Walter     
Regional Transportation Authority:  Mayor Walter 
 
National Liaison Assignments:  
 
National League of Cities and Towns:  Mayor Walter     

 
Approval to enter in to a Communications and Internet of Things Service Agreement with 
Milandr, Inc.  

 
Mr. Trent Shaffer, IT Manager, stated economic prosperity is something that is considered when 
the Town is considering being a smart city.  You must consider the jobs that it will bring in as well 
as technology and forecasting the development of new technology.  Staff also has to consider 
how new technology economically viable to build the Town’s infrastructure and create jobs.    
 
Mr. Shaffer explained what the “Internet of Things” is, which is anything that connects to the 
internet and the commonality is that they all use data and transmit data through the network.   He 
stated that staff has to start thinking of how the Town can use this technology and some things 
include: 
- Smart water meters 

 Eliminate manual reads 
 Can provide instant reads 
 Can do leak detections 

- Wastewater 
 Flows 
 Chlorine injection into the system 

- Public Safety 
 Security cameras 
 Smart lights 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2018 
Page 9 of 15 

 Parking meters 
 Car charging stations 

 
Mr. Shaffer stated that these changes could save the Town money, make the Town more efficient, 
and provide instant access to information.  He stated that he discussed various components which 
would work great on silos, but Milandr has the availability to provide all the information in one 
place.   
 
Ed Levin, General Manager, Milandr, provided a presentation, in which he discussed the following: 
- With focus on Smart City solutions, including lighting, asset tracking, water management and 

smart buildings, the collaboration between Milandr and the Town of Florence will drive 
improvements in energy consumption, resource conservation and a variety of new and 
enhanced municipal services. 

- International company 
- 800 strong 
- Provided by Milandr 

 Increase efficiency 
 Self-service bill payment 
 Real time customer service 
 LPWAN, provided and operated by Milandr, water meters and other Smart City 

components are fully supported. 
 Water metering 
 Streetlight controls 
 Waste Management 
 Agricultural Apps 
 Residential Apps 
 Public Safety Apps 

- Communications Network 
 Milandr has designed, acquired, and will deploy and operate LoRaWAN Network, which 

will serve as backbone for the Town of Florence Smart City services 
 LoRaWAN Protocol 
 LoRa® is the physical layer or the wireless modulation utilized to create the long- range 

communication link.  The advantage of LoRa® is in the technology’s long range 
capability. A single gateway or base station can cover entire cities or hundreds of 
square kilometers. Range highly depends on the environment or obstructions in a given 
location, but LoRaWAN™ has a link budget greater than any other standardized 
communication technology. 

 Benefits  
o Discounted Pricing Model to Florence 
o Not a locked into a single solution network 
o Supports City Expansion 
o Supports Integration of many Vendors 
o Supports Multiple Solutions 
o Network Management is included 

- Network Architecture: Long Range Wide Area Network 
 Network Management 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2018 
Page 10 of 15 

 The Network is operated by Milandr and deployed as a scalable cloud-based resource. 
Milandr provides the management and control for the town of Florence LoRaWAN 
network  

 Network Coverage 
 Gateways provide the access to the end devices and the backhaul to the cloud.  

 Network Security 
 LoRaWAN Security uses AES 128-bit security keys unique to each meter and end 

device, which secure communication from the meters and end devices to the Network 
Server. 

- Network Management Software – Overview 
 Milandr’s Head-End system is an advanced Smart City data collection and management 

software. It is a highly scalable, customizable, and offers full integration of various Smart 
City & IoT applications. The NMS utilizes LoRaWAN network for data acquisition and 
device communication. The software provides a robust set of features, including: 
 Real-time two-way communications 
 AMI water meters control and management 
 Consumer access to energy consumption data 
 Event control 
 Communication management services 
 Advanced reporting.  

 In addition, Milandr’s Cloud-Based Software provides various dashboards for seamless 
integration of collected data from town of Florence services. 

 Features 
 Owned and maintained by Milandr 
 Flexible configuration 
 Scaling for Growth 
 Data Exportation 
 Reporting 
 Information Security 
 Alert System 

- Network Management Software – Key Features & Benefits 
 Proactively intelligent 
 Network performance 
 Customizable Dashboards 
 Programmable Alert Conditions 
 Customer Service Tools 
 Secure, Cloud-based Software 
 Automatic Software Upgrades 
 Built-in API’s 
 Consumption Graphs 

- Network Management Software - Head End System 
 Smart City Dashboard 
 Management Dashboard 
 Alarms 
 Individual Meter Reads 
 Asset Tracking 
 Location Coordination 
 Tamper Detection 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2018 
Page 11 of 15 

 Communication 
 Reporting 
 Customer Personal Portal 

- Network Management Software – Interfaces 
 Network Management Software - Interfaces 
 City Officials 

o Individual interfaces to meet the needs of the town of Florence, including alarms, 
billing, tracking 

 Management 
o Management interfaces allowing for custom reports and meters/devices 

management 
 Customers 

o A Customer portal allowing users to track their personal usage and pay bills online. 
- Network of Devices 

 Milandr’s Network Management Software enables compatible devices to transmit data over 
the LoRaWAN network. This data is organized & interpreted by the NMS and displayed in 
the Dashboard. Each month, more and more devices become available and compatible 
with the software, allowing for high scalability and customization.  

- Network of Devices – Compatible Technologies 
 The NMS has the ability to track and manage hundreds of thousands of devices on the 

Town of Florence network, such as: 
 Water Meters 
 Gas Meters 
 Electricity Meters 
 Smart Lights 
 Trash Bin Detectors 
 Temperature Sensors 
 Humidity Sensors 
 Vibration Sensors 
 Tank Level Sensors 
 CO2 Sensors 
 Motion Sensors 
 Water Leak Sensors 
 Manhole Cover Sensors 
 Water Quality Monitors 
 Waste Management 
 Municipal Services 
 Gunshot/Noise Sensors 
 Smart Agriculture Devices 
 Battery Voltage Monitors 
 Window/Door Sensors 
 Smart Parking Devices 
 Smart Weather Stations 
 Weather Monitoring 
 Flame Sensors 

 
Councilmember Wall stated that the project is being started in the central part of Florence, and 
inquired what consideration is being given to other geographical areas in Florence.  
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2018 
Page 12 of 15 

Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town was first introduced to Milandr approximately nine months 
ago, by Innovation Pavilion.  He stated that most cities that are turning into smart cities are 
contracting with individual vendors that own the technology in a very closed technological sense.  
He told Milandr that Florence needed an open architecture where the water meters can talk to the 
pressure sensors which can talk to the SCADA systems, and other components.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town entered into a letter of agreement with Milandr approximately 
five months ago for research and development.  The no cost agreement is to work with Milandr to 
determine what technology could be used and how the dashboard and interface will work.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that a considerable amount of study has been done and based on the 
different locations where the Town would put the radio, the tower that the Town owns in Anthem 
would be a good location.  There will be coverage over the majority of the Town, inclusive of the 
downtown area, south of the CAP, Anthem, Florence Gardens and the Five Parks Area.  He stated 
that the reason there is so much information about the Town core is because the first function is 
smart metering, which relates to the Town’s provision.  He stated that there is a whole litany of 
sensors available that can communicate in the open architecture as well.  He stated, if approved, 
the LoRaWAN will be installed on Town property and will begin testing sensors within the next 
month.  The water meter bid for our smart meter systems is currently open.   
 
Mr. Levin stated that the propagation study that was performed showed that all of the Town 
properties will be covered in the first roll out. 
 
Councilmember Wall inquired if there have been discussions with other entities that provide 
service to the Town residents or other infrastructure that might benefit from this platform.  
 
Mr.  Shaffer stated that they have not held discussions with other entities.  
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson inquired how will the Town pay for the meters.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that currently, the Town has staff that reads water meters, and it will be 
considerably cheaper than the manual system that the Town currently uses.  
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson inquired if those positions will be removed from the budget.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the positions will be removed from the budget.  He stated that the person 
in that position is ready to try other challenges.  
 
Mr. Shaffer stated that a cost to build a gateway infrastructure is not an extremely large amount 
of money.  Milandr is supplying the gateway devices free of charge.  They are also saving the 
Town the cost of the infrastructure as well.  He stated that they use radio technologies that are 
modular.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the key is to be first to develop a technology of a true smart city and to 
grow Milandr in Florence, and others will follow suit to use this technology for smart cities.   
 
Mr. Shaffer stated that this can be used as a revenue source as well.  The devices can be put in 
people’s homes and charge a small fee.       
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2018 
Page 13 of 15 

Mayor Walter inquired if there are plans to speak with Epcor or Pulte in the near future.  
 
Mr. Levin stated that once the initial system is up, it is very easy to expand and be cost effective.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that Johnson Utilities and Epcor have the infrastructure in place.  They use 
Sensus Pearl meters and it is a proprietary system.  They are not able to communicate with 
another system.  He stated that they would not be interested in speaking with the Town because 
the systems would not be able to communicate with one another.  
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (7-0) to 
enter into a Communications and Internet of Things Service Agreement with Milandr, Inc.  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that he received a letter from Mr. Vince Acosta, Royal Sign, who spoke 
regarding a Board of Adjustment Case for Burger King.  He read a portion of the letter for the 
record, which stated: 
 
“I’ve been meaning to reach out to you once again and say thank you so much for your help and 
guidance on this whole process from the start.  I sincerely appreciate it.  Kuddos to you (Larry 
Harmer) on the presentation, you killed it.  I’ve done maybe eight to 10 variances in my 25 years 
in the business, but I can honestly say that none of them were as smooth as yours went.   
 
On another note, I received another nice from a phone call from a gentleman named Ron Rowley 
yesterday from Caliente Casa De Sol RV Resort in Florence. I spent a good 45 minutes to an 
hour consulting with him regarding their new monument sign that they want to replace, the old 
double pole pylon sign.  I spoke very highly, and he totally agreed.  He said that you gave him a 
lot of great feedback too.  They will be reaching out to me on that project in March of next year.” 
 
Mr. Billingsley congratulated Mr. Harmer and his team.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that regarding economic prosperity, the Silver King Rental RFP just came 
out and inquired if the Council could have notification of upcoming bids.  She would also like a 
listing of the buildings that are available in Town for businesses, their condition and if the owners 
want to rent them out or sell the property.    
 
Mr. Billingsley suggested that Ms. Jennifer Evans present to the Council the inventory of available 
properties at a future meeting.   
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS   

Community Services 
Community Development   
Courts 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2018 
Page 14 of 15 

The Department Reports were received and filed.   
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
There were no public comments.  
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 
 
Councilmember Hughes stated that she looks forward to the next four years and learning about 
each of the departments.  She thanked Ms. Garcia for the training she provided.   
 
Councilmember Cordes thanked everyone for welcoming them.  She appreciates everyone’s 
kindness and taking the time to meet with them to discuss what their department does, how it runs 
and how they can make their jobs easier and run smoother.  She thanked Ms. Garcia for her 
guidance and support.  She is excited to see how she can help impact the Town.  
 
Councilmember Larsen welcomed the new Councilmembers.  She looks forward to working with 
them.  She stated that Ms. Guilin and Ms. Woolridge will be missed.  She congratulated Vice-
Mayor Anderson on his appointment to Vice-Mayor.  She looks forward to seeing Vice-Mayor 
Anderson prosper in his new position.  
 
Councilmember Wall stated that she participated in the roll out of the 1953 Fire Truck.  She stated 
the Warden from the Arizona State Prison was able to drive it to the Pinal County Historical 
Museum and presented them with a $1,300 check for their restoration fund.  The money was 
donated by the inmates.  He assured them when the next two fire trucks are ready to be restored, 
the same kind of response can be expected for those restorations.  She thanked the Warden and 
those who worked on the restoration.  She noted that the truck will be in the Light Parade.   
 
Councilmember Wall thanked Ms. Guilin and Ms. Woolridge for their guidance.  She welcomed 
Councilmember Cordes and Councilmember Hughes.  
 
Councilmember Hawkins echoed the sentiments of the other Councilmembers.   He looks forward 
to working with the new councilmembers.  
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson stated that the Jr. Parada was a great success.  He explained that the 
inmates were part of a CAC class.  They used six gallons of paint because they had to redo the 
paint job if it was not done right.  CAC did a great job in training the inmates.  He stated that 
Florence has a bright future and there is a lot of exciting things happening.  He looks forward to 
serving the Town as the Vice-Mayor 
 
Mayor Walter thanked Ms. Guilin and Ms. Woolridge for their service and welcomed the new 
Councilmembers.  She stated that the Town is going to work on the Redevelopment Commission 
and the Economic Development Commission.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that there will be a Neighborhood Meeting on the Sign Code and provisions 
of the Town’s parking requirements to bring the Development Codes up to date and to be 
consistent with other areas of the Development Code.  The meeting is scheduled to discuss the 
code amendments will be held on December 4, 2018 at the Town of Florence Library and 
Community Center. 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
December 3, 2018 
Page 15 of 15 

 
Mayor Walter thanked everyone who participated in the Jr. Parada.  She invited everyone to 
attend the Electric Light Parade.   
 
 ADJOURNMENT 

 
On motion of Councilmember Cordes, seconded by Councilmember Hughes, and carried (7-0) to 
adjourn the meeting at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town Council 
meeting held on December 3, 2018, and that the meeting was duly called to order and that a 
quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 

 
 







































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7a.  

MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town 
Clerk 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
Subject:  Council Rules of Procedure  Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
Page 1 of 1 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 1686-19 adopting the 2019 Town 
Council Rules of Procedure 

 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    

 Leadership and Governance     Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1686-19: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE FLORENCE TOWN 
COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE, EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 22, 2019. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
In November 2018, staff provided the Mayor and Town Council copies of the Town 
Council Rules of Procedure.  Members of Council have provided written comments to 
the Clerk’s Office.  All comments have been included and incorporated in the 2019 
version of the Town Council Rules of Procedure.  On January 3, 2019, the Council 
reviewed Rules of Procedure during a work session to discuss possible changes.  All 
comments from the Mayor and Council have been incorporated into the policy revisions.  
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN:  
 
The rules would not be adopted, and Resolution No. 1621-17 would remain the official 
Council Rules of Procedure.  
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN:  
 
The Council Rules of Procedure would be adopted effective February 22, 2019. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Not applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Council Rules of Procedure  



  
RESOLUTION NO. 1686-19 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE FLORENCE TOWN 
COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE, EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 
22, 2019. 

 
WHEREAS, the Florence Town Council desires to amend the policies and 

procedures for conducting business; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Florence Town Council desires the policy to be consistent 
with the Town Code. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, that the Florence Town Council Rules of Procedures 
are hereby amended effective February 22, 2019. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 22nd day of January 2019. 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
       Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________  ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 
  
 
 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No 1686-19 
Page 1 of 32 

Town of Florence 
Town Council 

Rules of Procedure 
2019 

 
 
SECTION 1.   RULES OF PROCEDURE/AUTHORITY 
 
1.1 PROCEDURES 
The following are the basis for and are used in conjunction with these Rules of 
Procedure for meetings of the Town Council:   
 

A. Arizona Open Meeting Law (ARIZ. REV. STAT. § 38-431 et seq., as amended) 
B. Town Code 
C. Town of Florence Parliamentary Procedures Simplified 
D. Roberts Rules of Order, as amended 

 
1.2 PARLIAMENTARIAN 
Town Council Meetings: The Town Attorney shall serve as Parliamentarian for all Town 
Council Meetings.  The Town Clerk shall act as Parliamentarian in the absence of the 
Town Attorney.  
 
Boards/Commissions/Committees: The Council Liaison shall serve as Parliamentarian 
for each respective board, commission, or committee. 
 
SECTION 2.  DEFINITIONS 
 
2.1 AGENDA 
As set forth in Section 6 below, an Agenda is the formal description of items to be 
considered by the Town Council at a noticed meeting of the Town Council.  The final 
Agenda must be posted at least 24 hours prior to the Town Council’s meeting. 
 
2.2 CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town 
Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to 
review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda (See Section 
7.1, Agenda Items Submittal).  However, members of the Council shall not discuss or 
act on any matter during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly 
noticed for discussion and legal action.  This disclaimer will appear on the first Call to 
the Public listing on the agenda.  The Mayor will read the disclaimer into the record at 
each meeting. 
 
2.3 CALL TO THE COUNCIL- CURRENT EVENTS ONLY Members of the public body 
may present a brief summary of current events without listing in the agenda the specific 
matters to be summarized, provided that the summary is listed on the agenda and that 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No. 1686-19 
Page 2 of 32 

the public body does not propose, discuss, deliberate or take legal action at that 
meeting on any matter in the summary unless the specific matter is properly noticed for 
legal action. (A.R.S. § 38-431.02(K)).  Reports that address matters other than a 
summary of current events or that are delivered by someone other than an official of the 
public body do not come within the provision authorizing current events summaries and 
must comply with the agenda requirements of the Open Meeting Law.  Public bodies 
should limit the use of the current events summary provision to appropriate situations 
and should strive to provide as much advance information as possible to the public. 
 
In accordance with state law, the members of the public body may not support or 
oppose a candidate for nomination or election to public office or the recall of a public 
officer or supporting or opposing a ballot measure, question or proposition, including 
any bond, budget or override election and supporting or opposing the circulation of a 
petition for the recall of a public officer or a petition for a ballot measure, question or 
proposition in any manner that is not impartial or neutral. 
 
2.4 COUNCIL PACKET 
The Town Council agenda packet is comprised of documents supporting the items listed 
on the agenda and requiring Council action, which may be used by Town Council, staff, 
and the public for more in-depth information than may be presented in an oral report.  
The packet is organized, as set forth in Section 7 below, and is provided to the Town 
Council and made available to the public on the Town’s website. 
 
2.5 EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Upon a public majority vote of the members constituting a quorum, a public body may 
hold an executive session but only for the following purposes: 

A. Discussion or consideration of employment, assignment, appointment, 
promotion, demotion, dismissal, salaries, disciplining or resignation of a public 
officer, appointee or employee of any public body, except that, with the exception 
of salary discussions, an officer, appointee or employee may demand that the 
discussion or consideration occur at a public meeting.  The public body shall 
provide the officer, appointee or employee with written notice of the executive 
session as is appropriate but not less than twenty-four hours for the officer, 
appointee or employee to determine whether the discussion or consideration 
should occur at a public meeting. 

B. Discussion or consideration of records exempt by law from public inspection, 
including the receipt and discussion of information or testimony that is specifically 
required to be maintained as confidential by state or federal law. 

C. Discussion or consultation for legal advice with the attorney or attorneys of the 
public body. 

D.  Discussion or consultation with the attorneys of the public body in order to 
consider its position and instruct its attorneys regarding the public body's position 
regarding contracts that are the subject of negotiations, in pending or 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No 1686-19 
Page 3 of 32 

contemplated litigation or in settlement discussions conducted in order to avoid 
or resolve litigation. 

E. Discussions or consultations with designated representatives of the public body 
in order to consider its position and instruct its representatives regarding 
negotiations with employee organizations regarding the salaries, salary 
schedules or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits of employees of 
the public body. 

F. Discussion, consultation or consideration for international and interstate 
negotiations or for negotiations by a city or town, or its designated 
representatives, with members of a tribal council, or its designated 
representatives, of an Indian reservation located within or adjacent to the city or 
town. 

G. Discussions or consultations with designated representatives of the public body 
in order to consider its position and instruct its representatives regarding 
negotiations for the purchase, sale or lease of real property. 

2.6 MEETINGS 
A meeting is the gathering, in person or by technological devices, of a quorum of 
members, at which they discuss, propose or take legal action, including any 
deliberations by a quorum with respect to such action.  If a quorum is not present, those 
in attendance will be named for the record and in the absence of the Presiding Officer, 
the Town Clerk or departmental liaison will adjourn the meeting. 
 
2.7 MANAGER REPORT 
The only report that can be given without listing the contents of the presentation is the 
brief summary of current events by the chief administrator, the presiding officer of the 
Council, or a member under A.R.S. § 38-431.02(K).  A generic agenda item, such as 
“Police Department Report, “Fire Department Report,” or “Executive Director Report” 
does not satisfy the requirement that the agenda provide information that is “reasonably 
necessary to inform the public of the matters to be discussed or decided”, A.R.S. § 38-
431.02(H).  No action is expected as a result of the reports, which are provided to the 
Council and public for informational purposes only.  All reports discussed as part of the 
Town Council meeting will have written reports that are included in the Town Council 
packet and posted as part of the official agenda packet online.  The Town Manager 
shall provide a written report once a month.  
 
2.8 NEWSPAPER 
Typically, a daily or weekly publication of general circulation within the Town of Florence 
containing news, feature articles, editorials, and general advertisements. 
 
2.9 NOTICE 
A formal announcement to the public that sets forth the name of the public body, date, 
time and place for which a meeting of the Town Council will be held.  Giving formal 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No. 1686-19 
Page 4 of 32 

notice of meetings is done as provided by Statute, Town Code, or other rules or 
regulations of the Town. 
 
2.10 ORDINANCE 
An ordinance is a Town Council action setting forth a rule of public conduct that is 
considered long-term and may prescribe a penalty for violations thereof. Long-term 
rules include, but are not limited to, zoning issues, annexations, abandonments and 
Town laws.  The ordinance, in addition to being referenced by number in the minutes, 
will be recorded and maintained in numerical sequence as a permanent record of the 
Town in a separate set of books.  Effective dates of ordinances shall be as provided by 
law. 
 
2.11 PUBLIC BODY 
Town Council, all boards, committees, and commissions of the Town, and any specially 
seated board, commission, committee, or sub-committee of the Town whose members 
are appointed by the Mayor with the approval of the Town Council. 
 
2.12 QUORUM 
A quorum is the minimum number of members of the Town Council, Board or 
Commission that must be present for business to be legally transacted.   
 
With a seven-member body, a quorum (by State Statute) is four members. 
 
A quorum for a five-member body is three members.  
 
2.13 RESOLUTION 
A resolution is a more formal type of motion normally utilized to set forth policy of the 
Town.  The resolution, in addition to being referenced by number and brief title in the 
minutes, will be recorded as provided by law and maintained in numerical sequence as 
a permanent record of the Town in a separate set of books.  Resolutions are used for 
various reasons, such as when specifically required by law, when needed as a separate 
evidentiary document to be transmitted to another governmental agency, or where the 
frequency of future references back to its contents warrants a separate document to 
facilitate such future reference and research.  Effective dates of resolutions shall be as 
provided by law. 
 
SECTION 3.   PRESIDING OFFICER 
 
3.1 PRESIDING OFFICER 
As provided by the Town Code, the Mayor, or in the Mayor's absence, the Vice-Mayor is 
the Presiding Officer of all meetings of the Town Council.  
 
In the absence or disability of both the Mayor and the Vice-Mayor, the meeting shall be 
called to order by the Town Clerk, whereupon, the Town Clerk shall immediately call for 
the selection of a temporary Presiding Officer.  The Councilmembers present shall, by 
majority vote, select a Presiding Officer for that meeting. 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No 1686-19 
Page 5 of 32 

 
Upon the arrival of the Mayor or the Vice Mayor, the Vice Mayor or the temporary 
Presiding Officer shall immediately relinquish the chair upon the conclusion of the 
business immediately before the Town Council. 
 
3.2 ROBERT'S RULES OF ORDER 
The Presiding Officer, or Town Council, may suspend strict observance of these Rules 
of Procedure, other policies and procedures, and any applicable provision of Robert’s 
Rules of Order for the timely and orderly progression of the meeting. In the event of a 
conflict between these rules and Robert’s Rules of Order, these rules shall govern. 
 
SECTION 4.  MEETINGS 
 
4.1 REGULAR MEETINGS 
The Florence Town Council shall hold Regular Meetings at 6:00 p.m. on the first and 
third Monday of each month, in the Council Chambers, located at 775 N. Main Street, or 
another place, date or time as determined by the Town Council.  The Council will hold 
one meeting per month during the months of July and December.  Council will hold a 
meeting the third Monday in July and the first Monday in December.  Meetings are held 
for the purpose of discussion or action of the Town Council on various issues deemed 
necessary to further the business of the Town.  These meetings may provide for 
“Citizen Comments/Call to the Public". 

 
A. When the Regular Meeting of the Town Council falls on a legal holiday, no 

meeting shall be held on such holiday, but said meeting may be held at the same 
time and the same location on the next succeeding business day thereafter that 
is not a holiday or at such other time as designated by the Town Council.  The 
Town Council will take appropriate action to publicly announce such a change 
and will instruct the Town Clerk to publish the agenda in accordance with state 
law. 

 
4.2 ADJOURNED MEETINGS 
Any meeting may be adjourned to a time, place and date certain, but not beyond the 
next Regular Town Council Meeting.  Once adjourned, the meeting may not be 
reconvened except at the time, date, and place provided for in the motion.  A motion to 
continue an item on the Council Agenda shall not be considered a motion to adjourn. 
 
4.3 SPECIAL MEETINGS 

A. A special meeting of the Town Council may be called by the Mayor or Town 
Manager or at the request of two Councilmembers, for a time not earlier than 24 
hours after the later of (i) the notice being given to all Councilmembers or (ii) the 
Agenda being posted, except in the case of an actual emergency.  In the case of 
an actual emergency, such notice as is practicable under the circumstances shall 
be given.  Notice of all such Town Council meetings must be made pursuant to 
State law. 

 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No. 1686-19 
Page 6 of 32 

B. Special Meetings are held for the purpose of presentations, discussion, citizen 
comment or formal action of the Town Council on various issues as deemed 
necessary to further the business of the Town. 

 
4.4 WORK SESSIONS 
Work Sessions are held for the purpose of presentations and discussions on issues that 
require more in-depth consideration of the Town Council than may be possible at a 
Regular Meeting.  No formal action of the Town Council may be taken at such meetings, 
other than general consensus or conveying direction to staff for further action.  These 
meetings shall not provide for “Public Comment" unless the presiding officer invites 
public comment as part of the work session at the time of the meeting.   Work Sessions 
are held on the second or fourth Mondays when necessary.  
 
4.5 EXECUTIVE SESSIONS 
The Town Council may hold an Executive Session pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute 
§ 38-431.01 et seq. 
 
4.6 EMERGENCY MEETINGS 
As provided for in state statutes, the Mayor, the Town Manager or two members of 
Town Council may call an Emergency Meeting to discuss or take action on an 
unforeseen issue where time is of the essence and there is not sufficient time for 
posting of a meeting notice 24 hours or more before the meeting.  Notice of an 
Emergency Meeting will be posted within 24-hours following the holding of an 
Emergency Meeting.  The notice will include the agenda and a brief but complete 
description of the nature of the emergency.  Emergency Meetings shall not provide for a 
“Public Comment”. 
 
4.7 MEETINGS TO BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 

A. With exception of Council Executive Sessions, all Regular Meetings, Special 
Meetings, Work Sessions and Emergency Meetings of the Town Council shall be 
open to the public.  

 
B. All Public Meetings may be recorded or photographed by means of audio, video 

or photographic equipment; provided that there is no interference in the orderly 
conduct of the meeting and that said equipment is placed in non-hazardous 
locations as designated by the Town’s Staff. 

 
 
4.8 MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETINGS 

A. The Town Clerk’s Office shall provide staff support at all Regular, Special, Work 
Session and Emergency Meetings of the Town Council for the purpose of taking 
notes and/or audio recordation of the meeting. 

 
B. Written action minutes, instead of verbatim minutes, shall be taken so a brief 

accounting of the issues discussed, and actions taken is compiled and entered 
into the permanent minute book of the Town and kept on file and of record in the 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No 1686-19 
Page 7 of 32 

Office of the Town Clerk.  The minutes shall reflect Councilmember attendance 
for the entire meeting.  If a Councilmember arrives late or leaves early, then the 
minutes should reflect when the Councilmember arrived/left.  

 
Open Meetings may be recorded by means of audio or video technology.  Audio 
or video recordings of meetings will be retained in accordance with the current 
State of Arizona approved Records Retention and Disposition Schedules. 

 
C. All minutes of the Town Council are deemed to be public records, except for 

Executive Session minutes which, while they fall under the definition of and are 
considered public records by State Statute, are deemed confidential and are only 
available under limited conditions or by court order.  Transcribed minutes, or the 
audio or video recording of all Open Meetings of the Town Council, must be on 
file in the Office of the Town Clerk and available for public review by 5:00 p.m. on 
the third working day following each meeting or as provided by Arizona Revised 
Statutes, whichever is sooner. 

 
D. Minutes of Executive Sessions shall be confidential, are maintained and secured 

by the Town Clerk and may be accessed only as provided by Arizona Revised 
Statutes. 

 
SECTION 5.   NOTICES AND AGENDAS  
 
5.1 PREPARATION AND POSTING NOTICES   

A. The Town Clerk shall prepare all Public Meeting Notices of the Town Council and 
shall ensure posting of the meeting notices in accordance with Arizona Revised 
Statute, § 38-431.02.C. 
 

B. Formal notices, such as notices of public hearings, notice of bid, or other formal 
notices shall be posted on the Town’s website: florenceaz.gov. 
 

5.2 PREPARATION AND POSTING OF AGENDAS   
A. The Town Clerk shall prepare all Public Meeting Notices of the Town Council, 

and, except for permitted statutory exceptions, shall ensure posting of the 
meeting notices not less than 24 hours before the date and time set for said 
meetings, in accordance with Arizona Revised Statute, § 38-431.02.C. 
 

B. Town Council, Town Board and Commission agendas shall, at a minimum, be 
posted in the following locations: 

 
1. Town Hall, 775 N. Main Street, Florence, Arizona, 85132 
2.  florenceaz.gov 
 

5.3 POSTING OF ORDINANCES WITH A PENALTY CLAUSE: 
A.  An ordinance with a Penalty Clause shall be posted in the following locations: 

 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No. 1686-19 
Page 8 of 32 

1. Town Hall, 775 N. Main Street, Florence, Arizona 85132 
2. Florence Police Department, 425 N. Pinal Street, Florence, Arizona 85132 
3. Florence Fire Station No. 2, 2035 N. Hunt Highway, Florence, Arizona 85132 

 
5.4 AGENDAS 

A. The Town Clerk shall prepare the Agendas for all meetings of the Town Council, 
as set forth in Section 6 below or as directed by the Mayor, through the Town 
Manager.  Agendas of all meetings of the Town Council shall be available to the 
public not less than 24 hours prior to said meetings, except for permitted 
statutory exceptions. 

 
B. Agendas are made available through the Town’s website as a convenience and, 

upon request, will be provided at no charge to political subdivisions or 
educational institutions. 

 
5.5 DISTRIBUTION OF NOTICES AND AGENDAS 

A. The Town Clerk shall ensure that the Mayor and Town Council receive copies of 
all Town Council Meeting Notices and Agendas, and any documentation 
provided for said meeting, not less than 24 hours prior to the meeting, except for 
permitted statutory exceptions. 

 
B. The Town Clerk shall provide the Town Council meeting notices, agendas and 

documentation, as deemed necessary, to the Town Manager and the Town 
Attorney.  Courtesy copies will be available to the press.  Meeting notices, 
agenda, and agenda packets are posted on the Town’s website, not less than 24 
hours prior to said meeting. 

 
C. The Town Clerk may amend a published agenda, but not less than 24 hours prior 

to the designated meeting and only upon receipt of direction from (i) the Mayor or 
two members of the Town Council acting through the Town Manager or (ii) the 
Town Manager.  Scrivener’s errors may be corrected any time prior to the 
meeting. Amended agendas will indicate the date amended.  

 
SECTION 6.   ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 
6.1 ORDER OF BUSINESS 
The Order of Business of each meeting shall be as contained in the agenda as 
prepared by the Town Clerk.  The Agenda shall be a sequentially numbered listing by 
topic and a brief description of business agenda items, including a dollar amount where 
appropriate, that shall be taken up for consideration. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No 1686-19 
Page 9 of 32 

6.2 REGULAR MEETINGS 
The typical form of the agenda shall be as follows and may be changed as necessary: 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT OR BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS 
 
MOMENT OF SILENCE  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC - Topics are limited to items on the Town Council 
Agenda.  Speaker must fill out a form and give it to the Town Clerk prior to the 
meeting (See Section 6.8). 
  
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
RECOGNITION ITEMS/PRESENTATIONS 
 
CONSENT AGENDA (See Section 6.9) 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
NEW BUSINESS (action or informational items) 
 ITEMS SUBMITTED BY PUBLIC/APPLICANTS 
 COUNCIL SUBMITTED ITEMS 
 MANAGER SUBMITTED ITEMS 

  
MANAGER REPORT/DEPARTMENT REPORTS  
Provided at the second meeting of the month. 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC Topics are limited to items under the jurisdiction of the 
Florence Town Council.  Speaker must fill out a form and give it to the Town 
Clerk prior to Call to the Public (See Section 6.8). 
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

  
All agendas will have the following statement placed at the bottom of the agenda: 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No. 1686-19 
Page 10 of 32 

DATE/TIME POSTED: 
 
Any individual with a qualified disability may request a reasonable accommodation by 
contacting the ADA Coordinator at 520-868-7574 at least 72 hours prior to the Town 
Council meeting. 
 
6.3 SPECIAL MEETINGS 

A. If a Special Meeting is being held in place of a Regular Meeting, the agenda shall 
be as set forth for a Regular Meeting. 

 
B. For all other Special Meetings, the Agenda will typically be prepared in the 

following order: 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC   
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
6.4 WORK SESSION MEETINGS 
Work Sessions provide the Town Council an opportunity to discuss items in a study 
session.  No action may be taken at a Work Session.  The meeting is open to the public, 
but the public is not provided a platform to speak unless requested by the Presiding 
Officer.  A Work Session agenda is prepared in the following order. 
 

CALL TO ORDER  
ROLL CALL 
AGENDA ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: No Action/Discussion only.   



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No 1686-19 
Page 11 of 32 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
6.5 ITEMS TO BE TAKEN IN ORDER 

A. The Presiding Officer, or the members by consensus, may consider items out of 
sequence from the printed Agenda for the meeting. 

 
B. Action may be taken on all items listed for action on the Agenda.  In the event of 

an emergency, action may be taken on items not listed on the Agenda; however, 
the action must subsequently be given proper public notice in accordance with 
Arizona Revised Statutes § 38-431.02, as amended. 
 

6.6 ROLL CALL ATTENDANCE 
The Presiding Officer shall direct the Town Clerk to call the Roll, and the names of 
Councilmembers both present and absent shall be entered into the minutes.  
 
Roll Call shall be taken at the following times during a meeting: 
 

A. Calling the Meeting to Order. 
 

B. Entering into Executive Session. 
 

C. Adjourning to the Board of Adjustments. 
 

D. Adjourning to a Special Districts Board. 
 
Only the first Roll Call will be a voice Roll Call, all others will be reported by the Town 
Clerk.  
 
6.7 SCHEDULED PUBLIC APPEARANCES 
Scheduled Public Appearances allow citizens to speak on a specific item before the 
Town Council, including presentation of petitions, according to the following process: 
 

A. A written request shall be submitted to the Town Clerk for review by the Town 
Manager not less than five days prior to the Town Council meeting at which the 
person desires the item to be heard. 

 
B. The Town Manager or designee shall research the issue to determine if it may be 

handled administratively or will require Town Council discussion.  If it is 
determined that the matter should be placed before the Town Council, the Town 
Manager shall ensure that documentation, if any, is compiled and the material 
forwarded to the Town Clerk in the same manner as other issues presented to 
the Town Council. 

 
C. If the Town Manager determines that the subject should not be placed on a 

Council Agenda, the Town Clerk shall notify the citizen that their request for 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No. 1686-19 
Page 12 of 32 

action/input will not be placed on the agenda but forwarded to the appropriate 
department.   

 
D. The Mayor, two members of the Town Council or the Town Manager may 

request that an item be placed on the Council Agenda; the Town Clerk shall 
place the item on the next Regular Meeting Agenda and advise the citizen of the 
meeting date and time. 

 
6.8 NON-SCHEDULED APPEARANCES/CALL TO THE PUBLIC 

A. Call to the Public is for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes; however, the 
time limit may be waived by the presiding officer.  Individual Councilmembers 
may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to review a 
matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda per section 7.1.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action.  This disclaimer is intended for both Calls that 
appear on the agenda, but the written comment will appear only on the first Call 
to the Public listed on the agenda.  The Mayor will read the disclaimer into the 
record at each meeting.  
 

B. All citizens and interested parties wishing to speak before the Town Council at 
“Call to the Public” shall complete a speaker form located at the back of the Town 
Council chambers and submit the form to the Town Clerk, or designee prior to 
Call to the Public. 

 
C. By policy, the Town Council will refrain from commenting on the remarks given 

during “Call to the Public”.  At the conclusion of all public comment sections of 
the meeting, the Mayor or any Councilmember may take any or all of the 
following actions: 

1. Respond to Criticism. 
2. Ask Staff to review the matter. 
3. Ask that the matter be put on a future Agenda. 
4. Thank the citizens for their comments. 

 
D. Limitations Regarding Call to the Public: 

 
1. The Presiding Officer may limit the number of speakers heard on non-Agenda 

topics at any single meeting to allow the meeting to proceed and end in a 
timely manner. 
 

2. Oral communications during the Town Council meeting may not be used to 
lodge charges or complaints against any employee of the Town, regardless of 
whether such employee is identified in the presentation by name or by any 
other reference that tends to identify him/her.  Any such charges or 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No 1686-19 
Page 13 of 32 

complaints against employees shall be submitted during normal business 
hours to the Town Manager for appropriate action. 

 
6.9 CONSENT AGENDA 

A. The Consent Agenda includes items that (i) are of such a nature that discussion 
may not be required, (ii) are included in the annual budget, (iii) are under 
$100,000 (iv) or have been previously studied by the Town Council.  These items 
are adopted by a single motion and affirmative vote of a majority of the Town 
Council. 

 
B. There is no discussion on items listed under the Consent Agenda; however, a 

member of the Town Council or a member of the public may request that an item 
or items be removed for discussion. 

 
C. Items removed from the Consent Agenda are considered in their normal 

sequence as listed on the Agenda, unless called out of sequence as provided in 
Section 6.5 above. 

 
6.10 PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Generally, Public Hearings, other than those of a quasi-judicial nature, shall be 
conducted in the following Order: 
 
1. The Presiding Officer will announce the matter that is set forth for a Public 

Hearing and, if appropriate, ask the staff to provide a short summary of the 
matter. 
 

2. The Presiding Officer will then ask the applicant, if appropriate, to speak. 
 

3. At the conclusion of the Staff Report and/or presentation by the applicant, the 
Presiding Officer will open the Public Hearing for comments from the public. 

 
4. After all public comments are heard; the Presiding Officer will close the Public 

Hearing and may ask staff or the applicant to respond to the comments. 
 
5. The Presiding Officer may then call for a motion and second, if applicable, 

and/or ask if Town Council wishes to discuss the motion/item.  Town Council 
may then proceed to discuss the matter. 

 
6. Upon the conclusion of discussion, the Presiding Officer will call for action on 

the motion. 
 
7. Exhibits, letters, petitions and other documentary items presented or shown to 

the Town Council during a Public Hearing shall become part of the record of 
the Public Hearing and a copy thereof shall be submitted to the Town Clerk. 

 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No. 1686-19 
Page 14 of 32 

B. Questions or comments from the public shall be limited to the subject under 
consideration.  Depending upon the extent of the Agenda, and the number of 
persons desiring to speak on an Issue, the Presiding Officer may, upon 
consensus of the Town Council at the beginning of the hearing, limit testimony. 
Upon approval of the Town Council, persons may be allowed to speak longer 
than three minutes.  Councilmembers may ask the individual speaker questions, 
and the speaker may respond. 

 
C. Quasi-judicial hearings shall be conducted in accordance with the principles of 

due process, and the Town Attorney shall advise the Town Council in this regard. 
 

6.11 BUSINESS ITEMS/ACTION ITEMS 
A. At the time each business item is presented to Town Council, the staff will give a 

brief summary of the item, and the applicant, if applicable, may speak.  The 
Mayor will then provide for citizen input and comments, as requested, prior to the 
meeting. 
 

B. Those speaking before the Town Council will be allowed three minutes to 
address the Council; time limits may be waived upon consensus of the Town 
Council.  Such three-minute limit shall not apply to the applicant’s presentation. 
 

C. The purpose of all public comments is to provide information and the speaker’s 
views for Town Council consideration.  It is not appropriate for the speakers to 
question directly or debate the matter under consideration with staff, other 
speakers, the audience or members of the Town Council.  All comments shall be 
addressed through the Presiding Officer.  After being recognized by the Presiding 
Officer, Councilmembers may question the speakers, any applicant’s 
representatives or Town staff.  Except when answering a direct question from a 
Councilmember, all remarks shall be addressed to the Town Council as a whole, 
and not to individual members; provided; however, that all responses shall be 
directed through the Presiding Officer. 
 

D. Proper decorum must be observed by Councilmembers, by speakers providing 
testimony and remarks and by the audience.  In order to conduct an orderly 
business meeting, the Presiding Officer shall keep control of the meeting and 
shall require the speakers and audience to refrain from abusive or profane 
remarks, disruptive outbursts, applause, protests or other conduct that disrupts or 
interferes with the orderly conduct of the business of the meeting.  Personal 
attacks on Councilmembers, Town Staff or members of the public are not 
allowed.  It is inappropriate to utilize the Public Hearing or other Agenda item for 
the purpose of making political speeches, including threats of political action.  
Engaging in such conduct and failing to cease such conduct upon request of the 
Presiding Officer will be grounds for ending a speaker’s time at the podium or, at 
the direction of the Presiding Officer, for removal of any disruptive person from 
the Council Chambers. 
 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No 1686-19 
Page 15 of 32 

6.12 INFORMATION ITEMS 
Mayor and Councilmembers may present or discuss information items only if the 
specific matter is listed on the posted Agenda. 
 
6.13 ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting is adjourned by a motion to adjourn, a second and an affirmative vote of 
the majority. 
 
6.14 RECESS/BREAK 
The Presiding Officer or a member of Council may call a recess/break, if necessary, 
during the course of a public meeting. 
 
SECTION 7.   AGENDA PREPARATION 
 
7.1 AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTALS: REGULAR/SPECIAL/WORK SESSION 
Items may be placed on the Agenda for Town Council discussion and possible action by 
(i) the Mayor acting through the Town Manager, (ii) two Members of Council acting 
through the Town Manager or (iii) the Town Manager. 
 
7.2 AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTALS FOR TOWN COUNCIL EXECUTIVE SESSIONS 
Items may be placed on the Agenda for Council Executive Session discussion if in 
compliance with the Town Code and applicable State Statutes by the following process: 
 

A. Items may be placed on an Agenda for Executive Session discussion by (i) the 
Mayor acting through the Town Manager, (ii) two Council members acting 
through the Town Manager or (iii) the Town Manager.  

 
B. The Town Attorney shall review all items submitted for Executive Session 

discussion, prior to placement on the Agenda, to ensure that the item is legally 
permissible to be discussed in Executive Session, pursuant to Arizona Revised 
Statute § 38-431.03.  If permissible, the Town Clerk shall place notice of such 
Executive Session discussion on the Agenda. 

 
7.3 COUNCIL PACKETS 
Town Council agenda packets contain the Agenda, unapproved Minutes of previous 
Town Council Meetings, Town Council communications and any ordinances, 
agreements or resolutions to be acted upon including documentation that may be 
attached to support items contained on an Agenda for all noticed meetings of the Town 
Council.    
 
Agenda packets for ALL noticed Town Council Meetings (except Executive Session 
documentation) are made available to Councilmembers by the Town Clerk’s Office.  
Every effort will be made to distribute complete packets by the Wednesday prior to each 
Regular Town Council Meeting and not less than 24 hours prior to any Special Town 
Council Meeting. 
 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No. 1686-19 
Page 16 of 32 

SECTION 8.   PROCEDURES FOR CONDUCTING THE MEETING 
 
8.1 CALL TO ORDER 
All meetings of the Town Council shall be called to order by the Presiding Officer or in 
his/her absence, the Vice-Mayor.  In the absence or disability of both the Mayor and the 
Vice-Mayor, the meeting shall be called to order by the Town Clerk, whereupon, the 
Town Clerk shall immediately call for the selection of a temporary Presiding Officer.  
The Councilmembers present shall, by majority vote, select a Presiding Officer for that 
meeting. 
 
8.2 PARTICIPATION OF PRESIDING OFFICER 
The Presiding Officer may move, second, debate and vote from the Chair, subject only 
to such limitations of debate as are imposed on all Councilmembers, and he/she shall 
not be deprived of any of the rights and privileges of a Councilmember by reason of 
his/her acting as Presiding Officer; however, the Presiding Officer is primarily 
responsible for the conduct of the meeting. 
 
8.3 QUESTION TO BE STATED 
The Presiding Officer shall verbally restate each question immediately prior to calling for 
discussion and/or the vote.  Following the vote, the Presiding Officer shall verbally 
announce whether the question was carried or was defeated.  The Presiding Officer 
may also publicly state the effect of the vote for the benefit of the audience before 
proceeding to the next item of business. 
 
8.4 MAINTENANCE OF ORDER 
The Presiding Officer is responsible for the maintenance of order and decorum at all 
times.  No person is allowed to speak unless they have first been recognized by the 
Presiding Officer.  All questions and remarks shall be addressed to the Presiding 
Officer. 
 
SECTION 9.   RULES/DECORUM/ORDER 
 
9.1 POINTS OF ORDER 
The Presiding Officer shall, after consultation with the Parliamentarian, determine all 
Points of Order, subject to the right of any Councilmember to appeal to the entire Town 
Council.  If any appeal is taken, the question (motion) shall be: “Shall the decision of the 
Presiding Officer be sustained?”  In which event, following a second, a majority vote 
shall govern, and conclusively determine such question of order. 
 
9.2 ORDER AND DECORUM 

A. Councilmembers: 
1. Any Councilmember desiring to speak shall address the Presiding Officer 

and, upon recognition by the Presiding Officer, may speak.  The Presiding 
Officer shall not unreasonably withhold such recognition; however, the 
Presiding Officer may choose to not recognize similar or repetitive 
discussions or motions which would delay the meeting. 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No 1686-19 
Page 17 of 32 

 
2. When two or more Councilmembers wish to speak, the Presiding Officer shall 

determine the order of speaking and recognize the first speaker. 
 
3. While a Councilmember is speaking, no other Councilmember shall interrupt 

except to make a point of order or point of personal privilege. 
 
4. When a motion is made and seconded, the Presiding Officer shall ensure that 

the debate is confined to the motion. 
 

5. The Town Council may agree to limit debate on any matter before it.  A limit 
may be formalized by a majority vote of the Town Council or the Presiding 
Officer may announce time limits on any Agenda item with the consensus of a 
majority of the Town Council. 

 
6. Any Councilmember may call for a previous question on any issues under 

debate.  The call for previous question must receive a second and then 
receive at least a two-thirds vote. Passage of a motion to address the 
previous question terminates all debate on the original motion.  The Town 
Council shall immediately vote on such motion. 

 
7. The Town Council will not tolerate harassment, personal attacks or 

discrimination against each other or by members of appointed boards, 
commissions or committees.  No one shall be subject to unwelcome verbal or 
physical conduct that shows hostility based upon gender, race, ethnicity, 
sexual orientation, religion, age, disability or national origin.  Any 
Councilmember or appointee who violates this provision will be subject to 
removal from the meeting.  Any Councilmember or appointee acting in 
violation of this policy may also be subject to censure or other punishments 
prescribed in the Town Code.  

 
8. If a Councilmember acts in violation of these rules, the Presiding Officer shall, 

or any Councilmember may, call that Councilmember to order.  The 
Councilmember so called shall immediately cease speaking but may appeal 
to the Town Council.  The Town Council shall decide the appeal without 
debate.  If the appeal is granted, such Councilmember may continue 
speaking on the matter.  If the appeal is denied, such Councilmember shall 
remain silent on the matter.  Any Councilmember acting in violation of these 
rules is subject to censure or other punishment as the Town Council, by three 
quarters vote of the other Councilmembers present, deems just and proper 
under the law. 

 
B. Employees: Members of the administrative staff and employees of the Town shall 

observe the same rules of procedure and decorum applied to members of the 
Town Council.  The Town Manager shall ensure that all Town employees 
observe such decorum.  Any staff members, including the Town Manager, 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No. 1686-19 
Page 18 of 32 

desiring to address the Town Council or members of the public shall first be 
recognized by the Presiding Officer. 

 
C. Public: Members of the public attending the Town Council meetings shall 

observe the same rules of order and decorum applicable to the Town Council.  
Unauthorized remarks or demonstrations from the audience, such as applause, 
stamping of feet, whistles, boos, yells, and/or other demonstrations shall not be 
permitted.  The Presiding Officer may, after issuing a verbal warning to persons 
causing such disturbances, direct a police officer to remove such offender(s) 
from the meeting. 

 
9.3 ENFORCEMENT OF DECORUM 
Proper decorum is to be maintained during all meetings by the Town Council, staff and 
guests.  It is the responsibility of the Mayor or other person acting as Presiding Officer 
of the meeting to ensure compliance with this Policy.  A police officer may be directed 
by the Mayor or Presiding Officer to remove from the meeting, after a verbal warning, 
any person whose conduct is disorderly or disruptive. 
 
9.4 PROCEDURES IN ABSENCE OF RULES 
In the absence of a rule herein to govern a point or procedure, Robert’s Rules of Order, 
Newly Revised, shall be used as a guide. 
 
9.5 RULINGS OF PRESIDING OFFICER ARE FINAL, UNLESS OVERRULED 
In presiding over Town Council Meetings, the Presiding Officer shall decide all 
questions of interpretation of these rules, points of order, or other questions of 
procedure requiring rulings.  In making such determinations, the Presiding Officer may 
solicit the opinion of the Town Attorney, or other such person serving as the 
Parliamentarian of the Town Council. 
 
9.6 APPEAL THE RULING OF THE PRESIDING OFFICER 
Any procedural decision or ruling of the Presiding Officer shall be final; however, 
immediately following the Presiding Officer's ruling, a motion and second to appeal the 
ruling can be made and the ruling can be overridden or suspended by a majority vote of 
the Councilmembers present and voting.  If not appealed, the Presiding Officer's ruling 
shall be binding and legally effective for purposes of the matter under consideration. 
 
SECTION 10.  ADDRESSING THE COUNCIL 
 
10.1 PERSONS AUTHORIZED TO APPROACH COUNCIL DAIS AREA 
During a Town Council Meeting, no person except Town Officials shall be permitted 
within the area in front of the Town Council dais without the invitation or consent of the 
Presiding Officer. 
 
10.2 MANNER OF ADDRESSING THE COUNCIL 

A. Any member of the public desiring to address the Town Council shall proceed to 
the podium after having been recognized by the Presiding Officer.  There shall be 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No 1686-19 
Page 19 of 32 

no loud vocalization (shouting or calling out) from the seating area of the Council 
Chamber.  At the podium, he/she shall clearly state his//her name for the record. 

 
B. Within 72 hours notice, special assistance can be provided for any individual with 

a qualified disability.  Please call the ADA Coordinator at 520-868-7574 to 
request an accommodation to participate in a Public Meeting. 

 
10.3 ADDRESSING THE COUNCIL AFTER MOTION IS MADE 
After a motion has been made, or after a Public Hearing has been closed, public 
comment shall not be allowed without a request from a Councilmember or the Presiding 
Officer. 
 
SECTION 11.  MOTIONS 
 
11.1 PROCESSING OF MOTIONS 

A. When a motion is made and seconded, it shall be stated by the Presiding Officer 
before debate. 

 
B. The maker has the right to modify his/her motion as he/she pleases, or to 

withdraw it entirely.  If the motion is modified, the member who has seconded it 
has the right to withdraw his/her second. 

 
C. If a modification to a motion made by another Councilmember is accepted by the 

maker of the motion, then the Councilmember who seconded the unmodified 
motion shall be requested to reaffirm his/her second after modification.  If the 
Councilmember refuses to reaffirm his/her second, the second is presumed 
made by the suggestor of the modification. 

 
D. In the case of a tie in votes on any motion, the motion shall be considered lost. 

 
11.2 DIVISION OF QUESTION 
If the question contains two or more propositions that could be divided, the Presiding 
Officer may, upon the request of a Councilmember, divide the propositions into separate 
questions. 
 
11.3 MOTION TO POSTPONE INDEFINITELY 
A motion to postpone indefinitely is used to dismiss an item on the Agenda.  This motion 
is debatable, and because it can be applied only to the main question, it can, therefore, 
only be made while the main question is immediately pending (a motion and second is 
on the floor).  This motion is commonly used to postpone an item until a more 
appropriate time. 
 
11.4 MOTION TO TABLE 
A motion to table enables the Town Council to lay the pending question aside 
temporarily when something else of immediate urgency has arisen, in such a way that 
there is no set time for taking the matter up again.  A motion to table shall be used to 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No. 1686-19 
Page 20 of 32 

temporarily by-pass the subject.  A motion to table shall be undebatable and shall 
preclude all amendments or debate of the subject under consideration.  If the motion 
shall prevail, the matter may be “taken from the table” at any time prior to the end of the 
next Regular Meeting; provided, however, that such item is included on the duly posted 
Agenda of the Town Council. 
 
11.5 MOTION TO CLOSE, LIMIT OR EXTEND DISCUSSION 
A motion to close, limit or extend discussion shall be used to limit or close debate on, or 
further amend the main motion.  This is referred to as “Call for the Question” and is the 
motion used to cut off debate and to bring the group to an immediate vote on the 
pending motion.  It requires a two-thirds vote.  The vote on a motion to call for the 
question to terminate discussion shall be by roll call. If the motion fails, debate shall be 
reopened.  If the motion passes, a vote shall be taken on the main motion. 
 
11.6 MOTION TO AMEND 

A. A Motion to Amend shall be debatable only as to the amendment.   A 
councilmember can make a motion to amend an amendment, but only one 
amendment is permitted at a time. 

 
B. An amendment modifying the intention of a motion shall be in order, but an 

amendment relating to a different matter shall not be in order. 
 

C. A substitute motion on the same subject shall be acceptable and shall be voted 
on before a vote on the amendment. 

 
D. Amendments shall be voted on first, then the main motion as amended. 

 
11.7 MOTION TO CONTINUE 
Motions to continue to a definite time shall be amendable and debatable only as to 
propriety of postponement and the time set. 
 
SECTION 12.  VOTING PROCEDURE 
 
12.1 CASTING A VOTE 

A. In acting upon every motion, the vote shall be taken by casting an aye/nay vote 
by voice, roll call or any other method as determined by the Presiding Officer 
from which the vote of each Councilmember can be clearly ascertained. 

 
B. If a Councilmember has declared a Conflict of Interest, he/she must abstain 

during the vote. 
 

C. If the roll call method of voting is used, the Town Clerk shall call the names of all 
members with the Presiding Officer called last.  Councilmembers shall respond 
"Aye" or "Nay”.  It shall be out of order for members to explain their vote during 
the roll call.  Comments should be made during the discussion.  There shall be 
no additional debate or speaking on the subject after the vote is taken. 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No 1686-19 
Page 21 of 32 

12.2 FAILURE TO VOTE 
All members of the Town Council in attendance at a duly called meeting that requires 
formal Town Council action are required to vote, unless the issue involves the conduct 
of that Councilmember or a matter upon which that Councilmember has declared a 
conflict of interest.  In all other cases, a failure to vote shall be entered in the Minutes as 
an affirmative vote. 
 
12.3 RECONSIDERATION 
Any Councilmember who voted with the majority may move for reconsideration of any 
action at the same or the next available Town Council meeting.  Motions must be 
seconded.  After a motion for reconsideration has once been acted upon, no other 
motion for reconsideration thereof shall be made without the unanimous consent of the 
Town Council. 
 
12.4 TIE VOTES 
On a tie vote, a motion requiring a majority vote for adoption is a lost motion. A tie vote 
on whether to grant an appeal from official action shall be considered a denial of such 
appeal, unless Town Council takes other action to further consider the matter. 
 
SECTION 13.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
13.1 INTRODUCTION 
Occasionally, a Councilmember may find himself/herself in a situation which requires 
that Councilmember to abstain from participating and voting on a matter before the 
Town Council.  This situation exists when the Councilmember has a “conflict of interest” 
as defined by the Arizona Conflict of Interest Law.  This law establishes minimum 
standards for the conduct of public officers and employees who, in their official capacity, 
are, or may become, involved with a decision which might unduly affect their personal 
interests or those of their close relatives. 
 
13.2 PURPOSE OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST LAWS 
The purpose of Arizona’s Conflict of Interest Law is to prevent self-dealing by public 
officials and to remove or limit any improper influence, direct or indirect, which might 
bear on an official’s decision, as well as to discourage deliberate dishonesty. 
 
 
13.3 APPLICABILITY OF THE ARIZONA CONFLICT OF INTEREST LAW 
The Arizona Conflict of Interest Law, as now set forth or as amended in the future, 
applies to all actions taken by Councilmembers. 
 
13.4 DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST 
Any Councilmember who may have a conflict of interest may seek the opinion of the 
Town Attorney as to whether a conflict exists under the State law and final opinions 
shall be filed with the Town Clerk.  Any Councilmember who has a conflict of interest in 
any decision must disclose that interest and declare the existence of the conflict 
publicly.   Minutes containing conflict of interest disclosures will be on file in the Clerk’s 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No. 1686-19 
Page 22 of 32 

Office.  The Town Clerk shall maintain for public inspection all documents necessary to 
memorialize all disclosures of a conflict of interest by a Councilmember. 
 
13.5 RULE OF IMPOSSIBILITY 
In the unlikely situation that a majority of Councilmembers have a conflict of interest and 
the Town Council is unable to act in its official capacity, members may participate in the 
Town Council’s decision after making known their conflicts of interest in the official 
records. 
 
13.6 IMPROPER USE OF OFFICE FOR PERSONAL GAIN 
Public officers and employees are prohibited from using or attempting to use their 
official positions to secure valuable things or benefits for themselves, unless such 
benefits are part of the compensation they would normally be entitled to for performing 
their duties. 
 
13.7 SANCTIONS FOR VIOLATIONS 
Violations of the conflict of interest provisions set forth herein shall be punished as 
provided for in state law. 
 
13.8 NON-STATUTORY CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
Occasionally, a Councilmember may feel that he/she should ethically refrain from 
participation in a decision even though the circumstances may not amount to a conflict 
of interest under the state law described above.  It is the policy of the Town Council to 
encourage Councilmembers to adhere to strongly held ethical values which are 
exercised in good faith; however, Council encourages participation in the decision-
making process unless the matter involves the Councilmember’s personal conduct, or a 
conflict of interest set forth by Statute.  Therefore, failure to vote on a matter for any 
reason other than a conflict of interest under state law shall be considered a vote in 
favor of such matter. 
 
SECTION 14.  ELECTION OF VICE MAYOR 
 
The Town Council shall designate one of its members as Vice-Mayor who shall serve in 
such capacity for a two-year term at the pleasure of the Town Council.  The Vice-Mayor 
shall perform the duties of the Mayor during the absence or disability of the Mayor. 
 
Nomination and selection process for Vice-Mayor is as follows: 
 

A. The Mayor will open the floor for nominations. 
B. Any member may offer a nomination for the position of Vice-Mayor, in 

accordance with prior Council practice, with no second required. 
C. The member must accept the nomination.  
D. Votes for Vice-Mayor shall then be cast and recorded, in the order that the 

nomination occurred.   
E. If at least four affirmative votes are cast for a candidate, the candidate assumes 

the position and duties of Vice-Mayor for a two-year term. 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No 1686-19 
Page 23 of 32 

 
 
SECTION 15.  BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES 
 
The Town Council may create such boards, commissions and committees as it deems 
necessary to assist in the conduct of the operation of Town government. 
 
15.1 REGULARLY SCHEDULED OR UNSCHEDULED BOARDS, COMMISSIONS 
AND COMMITTEES 

A. All boards, commissions and committees of the Town shall be classified as 
regularly scheduled or unscheduled boards, commissions and committees. 
Regularly scheduled boards, commissions and committees are those that meet 
on a regularly scheduled basis or may be quasi-judicial in nature.  Unscheduled 
boards, commissions and committees meet on an as called basis. 

 
B. Regularly scheduled boards, commissions and committees include: 

 
1. Art and Culture Commission 
2. Historic District Advisory Commission  
3. Library Advisory Board 
4. Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
5. Planning and Zoning Commission 
6. Youth Commission 

 
C. Unscheduled boards, commissions and committees: 

1. Board of Adjustment 
2. Board of Appeals 

 
D. Other separate legal entities that also address the needs of the Town, including: 

1. Industrial Development Authority 
2. Community Facilities District Boards 

 
E. Any board, commission or committee created shall cease to exist (i) upon the 

accomplishment of the special purpose for which it was created (ii) when 
abolished by a majority vote of the Town Council, (iii) as dictated by the Town 
Code, (iv) or when disbanded or dissolved through legal authority. 

 
15.2 RECOMMENDATIONS FOR APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS, COMMISSIONS 

AND COMMITTEES 
A. The Mayor may designate an appointing committee.  This appointing committee 

shall be made up of three members (from members of the Council or appropriate 
board/commission).  The Mayor may appoint himself/herself to this committee.  If 
no such committee is appointed, the entire Town Council shall conduct interviews 
and appoint citizens to the various boards, commissions and committees. 

 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No. 1686-19 
Page 24 of 32 

B. The purpose of this appointing committee is to interview applicants and 
recommend to the Town Council possible candidates as described in Section 
15.3. 

 
15.3 SELECTION OF BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

A. A call for applications to fill vacant seats to boards, commissions and committees 
shall be duly published for at least one week via newspaper advertising, website 
(florenceaz.gov) and other means as available to the Town. 

 
B. Individuals applying for boards, commissions or committees must fill out and 

submit the Town application form to the Town Clerk by the published deadline. 
The Town Clerk will forward the applications to the appropriate staff liaison. 

 
C. The Town Clerk will review the applications and prepare support materials for the 

Appointing Committee. Staff will schedule an appropriate time for an open 
meeting in order that the committee may interview in person, or via telephone, 
applicants for the open seat(s) to any Town board, commission or committee.  

 
D. After review and consideration, the appointing committee members shall 

announce a recommendation and prepare a memorandum recommending 
candidates to fill the vacancies. This memorandum shall include copies of all the 
applications received.  

 
E. The Town Clerk shall prepare an agenda item for the next appropriate Town 

Council meeting after the appointing committee has communicated its 
recommendation(s) to fill open board, commission or committee seat(s). 

 
F. The Town Clerk will notify the appointee(s) in writing as to their appointment and 

the next meeting date of the new member’s board, commission or committee 
scheduled meeting. Any official literature, agendas, minutes or other materials 
specific to the committee, board, or commission appointment will be included in 
the notification.  
 

G. Unsuccessful applicants will be notified that they have not been selected. 
 

15.4 QUALIFICATIONS FOR APPOINTMENTS; EMPLOYEES OR APPOINTED 
OFFICERS AS MEMBERS 

A. All members of boards, commissions and committees shall meet the following 
minimum qualifications upon their appointment to any board, commission or 
committee. Each member must be: 

 
1. Eighteen years of age or older, except for members appointed to any board, 

commission or committee seats designated by Town Council for youth 
representation. 

2. A registered voter, except those under 18 years of age. 
 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No 1686-19 
Page 25 of 32 

B. Town employees or appointed officers shall not be eligible for appointment to any 
boards, commissions, and committees but may be requested to provide staff 
support thereto. 

 
15.5  TERMS, VACANCIES, REMOVAL 

A. All members of boards, commissions and committees shall serve a term of up to 
three years, or until the board, commission or committee is dissolved, unless 
terms are specifically designated by Town Council action, Town Code or Arizona 
Revised Statutes. 

 
B. For boards, commissions and committees having five members or less, the terms 

of office shall be staggered so that no more than three terms shall expire in any 
single year when possible; provided, however, that no staggering of terms shall 
be required for any board, commission or committee that will be in existence for a 
single term.  

 
C. For those boards, commissions and committees having more than five members 

but less than eight members, the terms of office shall be staggered so that no 
more than four terms shall expire in any single year when possible; provided, 
however, that no staggering of terms shall be required for any board, commission 
or committee that will be in existence for a single term. 

 
D. A vacancy on a board, commission or committee shall be deemed to have 

occurred upon the following:    
 

1. Death or resignation of a member of a board, commission or committee.   
2. A member ceasing to be a Florence resident unless the Town Council has 

provided that such member may be a non-resident.  
3. Three consecutive unexcused absences by a member from board, 

commission or committee meetings.  
4. Convictions of a felony or an offense involving a violation of his official 

duties. 
 

E. Whenever a vacancy has occurred on one board, commission or committee, the 
appointing committee shall meet to recommend a candidate to complete the 
remainder of the term. Procedures described in Section 15.3 above will be used 
to generate applicants, interview applicants, and make a recommendation. 

 
F. An incumbent member of a board, commission or committee seeking 

reappointment shall submit a new application under the provisions set forth in 
Section 15.3 above and shall be considered for appointment by the Town Council 
in the same manner as all other applicants for such position.  

 
15.6 ALTERNATES 
The Town Council may appoint alternates to serve on boards, commissions and 
committees in the event of vacancy. Such alternates may attend meetings of the board, 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No. 1686-19 
Page 26 of 32 

commission or committee but shall not participate until such time as a vacancy has 
occurred and the alternate has filled such vacancy. If the Town Council appoints more 
than one alternate for a particular board, commission or committee, the Town Council 
shall designate the alternates as first alternate, second alternate and so on such that 
immediately upon a vacancy occurring in a board, commission or committee, the first 
alternate shall fill such vacancy without the need for further Town Council action. 
 
15.7 APPLICABILITY OF THE ARIZONA OPEN MEETING LAW 
All boards, commissions and committees are subject to the Arizona Open Meeting Law. 
 
15.8 RESIDENCY REQUIREMENTS 
Members shall be residents of the Town of Florence.  All members shall be bona fide 
residents of the municipality, unless a motion, resolution or ordinance creating a board, 
commission or committee specifies otherwise, and shall serve without pay or 
compensation, except that a member shall be reimbursed for his/her actual and 
necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their official duties, provided that 
such expenses are approved by the Council or Town Manager, within budgetary 
limitations, prior to being incurred.  
 
SECTION 16.  COUNCIL BUDGET, EXPENSES AND TRAVEL 

A. Councilmembers shall adhere to the adopted Town of Florence Travel Policy 
except as otherwise set forth herein. 

 
B. The Town Council shall adopt, as part of the annual budget, specific travel 

budget amounts for each Councilmember. The Town Council may also establish 
a fund from which an individual member may draw additional travel funds upon 
approval of the Town Council acting upon an item listed upon a duly published 
agenda and taking place during an Open Public Meeting. 

 
SECTION 17.  CODE OF ETHICS 
Council/Board/Commission/Committee members shall conduct themselves so as to 
bring credit upon the Town as a whole, and to set an example of good ethical conduct 
for all citizens of the community.  Councilmembers should constantly bear in mind these 
responsibilities to the entire electorate and refrain from actions benefiting any individual 
or special interest group at the expense of the Town as a whole.   
 
Councilmembers should likewise do everything in their power to ensure impartial 
application of the law to all citizens, and equal treatment of each citizen before the law, 
without regard to race, religion, national origin, sex, social standing or economic 
position.  This assures public confidence in the integrity of local government and its 
effective and fair operations, and therefore the members will: 
 

A. Act in the Public Interest. Members will work for the common good of the people 
of the Town of Florence and not for any private or personal interest, and they will 
assure fair and equal treatment of all persons, claims and transactions coming 
before the Town Council, commissions, boards and committees. 

 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No 1686-19 
Page 27 of 32 

B. Comply with the Law.  Members will comply with the laws of the nation, the State 
of Arizona and the Town of Florence in the performance of their public duties. 
These laws include, but are not limited to, the United States and Arizona 
Constitutions, the Florence Town Code and Policies, laws pertaining to conflicts 
of interest, election campaigns, financial disclosure and the Public Open Meeting 
Law. 
 

C. Conduct of Members.  The professional and personal conduct of members must 
be above reproach and avoid even the appearance of impropriety.  Members will 
refrain from abusive conduct, personal charges or verbal attacks upon the 
character or motives of other members of the Council, commissions, boards, 
committees, staff and the public. 

 
D. Respect for Process.  Members will perform their duties in accordance with the 

processes and rules of order established by the Town Council and commissions, 
boards and committees governing the deliberation of public policy issues, 
meaningful involvement of the public in public hearings, and implementation of 
policy decisions of the Town Council by Town staff. 

 
E. Conduct of Public Meetings.  Members will prepare themselves for public issues, 

listen courteously and attentively to all public discussions before the body, and 
focus on the business at hand. They will refrain from interrupting other speakers, 
making personal comments not germane to the business of the body, or 
otherwise interfering with the orderly conduct of business. 

 
F. Decisions Based on Merit.   Members will base their decisions on the merits and 

substance of the matter at hand, rather than on unrelated considerations. 
 

G. Communication.  Members will publicly share substantive information that is 
relevant to a matter under consideration by the Council, commissions, boards or 
committees, which they may have received from sources outside of the public 
decision-making body. 

 
H. Conflict of Interest. In order to assure their independence and impartiality on 

behalf of the common good, members will not use their official positions to 
influence government decisions in which they have a material financial interest or 
a relationship that may give the appearance of a conflict of interest.   

 
In accordance with the law, members shall disclose investments, interests in real 
property, sources of income, and gifts. 

 
Members will abstain from participating in deliberations and decision-making 
where conflicts may exist as defined under Arizona Statutes.  Members should 
discuss any issues of conflict of interest with the Town Attorney.  
 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No. 1686-19 
Page 28 of 32 

I. Gifts and Favors. Members will not take any special advantage of services or 
opportunities for personal gain, by virtue of their public office, which is not 
available to the public in general.  They will refrain from accepting any gifts, 
favors or promises of future benefits that might compromise their independence 
of judgment or action or give the appearance of being compromised. 
 

J. Confidential Information. Members will respect the confidentiality of information 
concerning the property, personnel or affairs of the Town.  They will not disclose 
confidential information without proper legal authorization or Council majority 
approval.  They will not use such information to advance their personal, financial 
or other private interests or agendas. 

 
K. Use of Public Resources. Members will not use public resources unavailable to 

the public in general, such as Town staff time, equipment, supplies or facilities for 
private gain or personal purposes. 
 

L. Lobbying. Council may not adopt a resolution in support or opposition of a ballot 
measure, question, or candidate.  Council may present natural material providing 
education material on a ballot measure or question.  

 
M. Representation of Private Interests. In keeping with their role as stewards of the 

public interest, Councilmembers will not appear on behalf of private interests of 
third parties before the Council or any commission, board or committee or 
proceeding of the Town, nor will members of commissions, boards and 
committees appear before their own bodies or before the Council on behalf of the 
private interests of third parties on matters related to the areas of service of their 
bodies. 

 
N. Advocacy. Members will represent the official policies or positions of the Town 

Council, commissions, boards or committees to the best of their ability when 
designated as delegates for this purpose.  When presenting their individual 
opinions and positions, members will explicitly state they do not represent the 
Town, nor will they infer that they do. 

 
O. Policy Role of Members. Members will respect and adhere to the Council-

Manager structure of government as outlined in the Town Code. In this structure, 
the Town Council determines the policies of the Town with the advice, 
information and analysis provided by the public, commissions, boards, 
committees and staff.  Except as provided by the Town Code, members therefore 
will not interfere with the administrative functions of the Town or the professional 
duties of Town staff, nor will they impair the ability of staff to implement Council 
policy decisions. 

 
P. Independence of Commission, Boards and Committees. Because of the value of 

the independent advice of commissions, boards, and committees to the public 
decision-making process, Councilmembers will refrain from using their position to 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No 1686-19 
Page 29 of 32 

unduly influence the deliberations or outcomes of commission, board and 
committee proceedings. 

 
Q. Positive Work Place Environment. Members will support the maintenance of a 

positive and constructive work place environment for Town employees and for 
citizens and businesses dealing with the Town.  Members will recognize that their 
special role dealing with Town employees is not to create the perception of 
inappropriate direction to staff. 

 
R. Public Speaking. Members of Council shall declare they are speaking as a 

Councilmember, but it is their individual opinion, and may or may not be the 
opinion of the majority of Councilmembers.     
 

S. Implementation. As an expression of the standards of conduct for members 
expected by the Town, the Code of Ethics is intended to be self-enforcing.  It 
therefore becomes most effective when members are thoroughly familiar with it 
and embrace its provisions. 

 
Members entering office shall sign a statement affirming they read and 
understood the Code of Ethics.  In addition, the Code of Ethics shall be regularly 
reviewed by the Town Council, boards, commissions and committees, and the 
Town Council shall consider recommendations from boards, commissions and 
committees and update as necessary. 

 
T. The Code of Ethics will be included in the regular orientations for candidates for 

Town Council, applicants to boards, commissions and committees, and newly 
elected and appointed officials. 

 
17.1 COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT 
Compliance with this Code of Ethics is expected for members of the Town Council, 
commissions, boards, and committees.  Members themselves have the primary 
responsibility to assure that standards are understood and met, and that the public can 
continue to have full confidence in the integrity of government. 
 
The chairs of commissions, boards, and committees and the Mayor have the additional 
responsibility to intervene when actions of members that appear to be in violation of the 
Code of Ethics are brought to their attention.  They are responsible to gather more 
information about the alleged Code of Ethics violation and present the Town Council 
with a memo detailing the findings.  Any Town Councilmember may then ask that the 
item be placed on the Council agenda. 
 
The Town Council may impose sanctions on members of the Council, boards, 
commission, or committee whose conduct does not comply with the Town's standards, 
such as reprimand, formal censure, loss of seniority or committee assignment, or 
budget restrictions. 
 
A violation of the Code of Ethics will not be considered a basis for challenging the 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No. 1686-19 
Page 30 of 32 

validity of Council, commission, board, committee decisions, or removal. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No 1686-19 
Page 31 of 32 

 
 

Model of Excellence 
Member Statement 

 
 
 
 

As a member of the Florence Town Council or of a Florence board, commission, or 
committee, I agree to uphold the Code of Ethics for elected and appointed officials 
adopted by the Town and conduct myself by the following model of excellence.   I will: 
 

Recognize the worth of individual members and appreciate their individual 
talents, perspectives and contributions; 
 
Help create an atmosphere of respect and civility where individual members, 
Town staff and the public are free to express their ideas and work to their full 
potential; 
 
Conduct my personal and public affairs with honesty, integrity, fairness and 
respect for others;  
 
Respect the dignity and privacy of individuals and organizations; 
 
Keep the common good as my highest purpose and focus on achieving 
constructive solutions for the public benefit; 
 
Avoid and discourage conduct which is divisive or harmful to the best interest of 
Florence;  
 
Treat all people with whom I come in contact in the way I wish to be treated;  

 
I affirm that I have read and understood the Town of Florence Code of Ethics. 
 
 
 
_______________________    _________________ 
Signature       Date 



Rules of Procedure Adopted by Resolution No. 1686-19 
Page 32 of 32 

 
Speakers Request Form 

Public Comment 
Call to the Public 

 
 
 

 
Meeting Date:       Topic:       
 
Full Name:         Phone Number:      

         (Please Print) 
 

Physical Address:               

Mailing Address:            
 

I am a spokesperson for:           
   (self, business, religious group, non-profit, govt. agency) 

  
TITLE:              

 
I am representing (Number of people)       
          
 I wish to address the Council:  Elected Official  

 In Favor of the Topic    
  Opposed to the Topic 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
(Tear here: keep information below for reference) 

 
Please give this form to the Town Clerk.  Forms may be submitted at any 
time before or during the meeting.  
 
How to address the Council: 

 Must speak directly about an item on the agenda. 
 The Mayor or Presiding Officer will call your name when it is your turn to 

speak. 
 Citizens must limit comments to three minutes*. 
 Groups wishing to speak should elect a spokesperson to represent the 

views of the group. 
 The Mayor may limit the number of speakers heard on non-agenda 

topics at any single meeting to allow the meeting to proceed and end in 
a timely manner. 
 

* Prior approval is required for presentations longer than three minutes. 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7b.  

MEETING DATE:         January 22, 2019 
 
DEPARTMENT:             Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:    Larry Harmer 
                                       Community Development Director 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  
Subject:  Florence Hospital Comprehensive Sign Plan       Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
               PZ-18-36-DR 
Page 1 of 11 
 

 
SUBJECT:  Florence Hospital Comprehensive Sign Plan

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve PZ-18-36-DR, the Comprehensive Sign Plan for the Florence Hospital, 
APN 211-02-0340, located at 4545 North Hunt Highway, subject to the conditions noted 
in the staff report. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Request: 
 
This is a request for approval of the following: 
 

Design Review application for a proposed Comprehensive Sign Plan for the 
Florence Hospital located south of the Southeast Corner of Hunt Highway and 
Franklin Road at 4545 North Hunt Highway: APN 211-02-0340. 

 
The total sign area requested for the monument sign, three on-site directional 
signs, and three wall signs is 357.1 square feet.  The total sign area allowed per 
the Town of Florence Development Code is 232 sq. ft.  The total deviation is an 
increase of 125.1 sq. ft.  Following the procedure outlined for the review and 
approval of a Comprehensive Sign Package, the Planning Commission and Town 
Council may deviate from the height and area restrictions contained within the 
Code. 

 



Subject:  Florence Hospital Comprehensive Sign Plan       Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
               PZ-18-36-DR 
Page 2 of 11 
 

Florence Hospital at Anthem has submitted a Comprehensive Sign Plan, to the Town of 
Florence, for approval. Included in this plan is the signage on the hospital, directional 
sign/kiosk, and a monument sign at the traffic signal entrance.  
   
The Hospital plans to open its doors for business early in 2019 depending on construction, 
conditions of occupancy and a licensing inspection from Arizona Department of Health 
Services.  
 
The following excepts from the Town of Florence Development Code apply to this 
application: 
 
150.099  PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT. 
   Signage within approved Planned Unit Developments (PUDs) may deviate from the 
requirements of this Development Code provided the PUD has an approved 
comprehensive sign package and all proposed signage within the PUD is in compliance 
with that comprehensive sign package. 
 
 150.106  COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS. 
   Signs within commercial districts (B-1, NO, B-2, TRC, TRC/NO, PO and commercial 
PUDs) shall comply with the following applicable restrictions.  
 
 150.107  WALL SIGNAGE. 
   (A)   Wall signage may or may not be illuminated. 
   (B)   Wall signs pertaining to any one business within a complex, on a separate parcel 
or lot, or on a freestanding PUD shall be permitted on the exterior walls of the space 
occupied by the business in accordance with the following guidelines: 

(1) A wall sign may be permitted on any building elevation and shall have a maximum 
area not to exceed one square foot for each linear foot of the building wall upon 
which the sign is displayed. 

       (2)   Under no circumstances may any business have an aggregate area for all wall 
signs exceeding 200 square feet, unless as otherwise approved with a comprehensive 
sign plan. 
 
150.108  FREESTANDING MONUMENT SIGNAGE. 
   May or may not be illuminated. 
   (A)   One freestanding monument sign for identification purposes shall be permitted per 
business, except as otherwise allowed. 
   (B)   Any freestanding sign shall not exceed eight feet in height. 
   (C)   For a single tenant building, the sign shall not exceed 32 square feet in area (the 
Anthem at Merrill Ranch PUD allows 48 sq. ft.) and may include the name and/or logo of 
the business and shall include the address. 
 
150.109  DIRECTIONAL SIGNS. 
The signs shall not exceed an area of six square feet or a height of three feet. These 
signs shall not be included in calculating the total aggregate area of signage allowed on 
a particular lot or for a particular business and may include a maximum of 25% of the sign 



Subject:  Florence Hospital Comprehensive Sign Plan       Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
               PZ-18-36-DR 
Page 3 of 11 
 

area devoted to the display of a business logo or identification. They shall not be located 
within the sight triangle of any driveway. The use, number and location of the signs must 
be approved through the design review process and comply with all other code 
requirements. 
 
150.116  TOTAL SIGNAGE. 
   (A)   The total maximum aggregate signage, inclusive of wall, freestanding monument, 
window, awning, shingle, projecting or parapet signs, shall not exceed 232 square feet 
for a single-tenant development. 
 
150.122  SUBMITTAL AND PERMIT REQUIREMENTS. 

 (8)   A PUD must submit a comprehensive sign package and may, through the 
comprehensive sign package, request deviations from the sign regulations only if the 
deviations are reviewed and recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission and 
approved by the Town Council. 
 
Sign Package Proposal: 
 
Monument Entry Sign 

 
 



Subject:  Florence Hospital Comprehensive Sign Plan       Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
               PZ-18-36-DR 
Page 4 of 11 
 

 
 
Requested is a 5’ 9” tall, 54.2 square feet (sq. ft.) free-standing sign at the Hunt Highway 
entrance to the hospital site.  The maximum allowed, per the Development Code, and the 
Anthem at Merrill Ranch PUD, is 8’ tall and 48 sq. ft.  This new monument sign will be 
placed south of the entry drive.  The existing monument sign north of the entry no longer 
sits on hospital property as a result of the subdividing on a larger parcel that existed when 
the hospital was originally constructed.  The new monument sign location must be on the 
hospital property unless a Right-of-Way permit is acquired through the Town Engineer.  
The new sign will consist of an aluminum cabinet with blue, red and white lettering and 
background.  Alterations to the existing landscaping will likely result from the monument 
sign placement. 
 
Emergency Directional Sign (Monument #2): 
 



Subject:  Florence Hospital Comprehensive Sign Plan       Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
               PZ-18-36-DR 
Page 5 of 11 
 

 
 

 
 
Requested is 4’ 2” tall, 26.8 sq. ft. free-standing sign to be located on-site to identify the 
Emergency receiving area for emergency vehicles and the public.  The maximum allowed 
per the Development Code is 3’ tall and 6 sq. ft.  The additional height and area are 
requested to allow for quick identification in an emergency situation. 
 
General Directional Signs (2 total) 



Subject:  Florence Hospital Comprehensive Sign Plan       Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
               PZ-18-36-DR 
Page 6 of 11 
 

 
 

 
 
Requested are two on-site directional signs, each measuring 4’ tall, 14.7 sq. ft. in area.  
The maximum allowed per the Development Code is 3’ tall and 6 sq. ft.  The additional 
height and area are requested for ease of navigating the site. 
 
Wall Signs (3 total): 



Subject:  Florence Hospital Comprehensive Sign Plan       Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
               PZ-18-36-DR 
Page 7 of 11 
 

Wall signs have pan channel letters and/or logo and will have L.E.D. lighting and will be 
illuminated on exterior facia of the building. The colors will match those used on the free-
standing signs. 
 
#1 

 
 

 
 
This sign measures 68.5 sq. ft. in area and is a total of 3.5’ in height. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Subject:  Florence Hospital Comprehensive Sign Plan       Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
               PZ-18-36-DR 
Page 8 of 11 
 

#2 

 

 
 
This sign measures 150 sq. ft. in area and is a total of 5’ in height. 
 
 
#3 

 



Subject:  Florence Hospital Comprehensive Sign Plan       Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
               PZ-18-36-DR 
Page 9 of 11 
 

 
 
This sign measures 28.2 sq. ft. in area and is a total of 2.2’ in height. 
 
The total sign area requested for the wall signs is 246.7 sq. ft.  The maximum wall sign 
area allowed for a single tenant site per the Development Code is 200 sq. ft. 
 
Total Signage Requested: 
 
Sign Type         Requested Height/Area  Allowable Height/Area 
 
Monument    5’ 9”/54.2 sq. ft.   8’ 0”/48 sq. ft. (AMR PUD) 
Emergency Directional 4’ 2”/26.8 sq. ft.     3’ 0”/6 sq. ft.   
General Directional (2) 4’ 0”/14.7 sq. ft. (each)  3’ 0”/6 sq. ft. 
Wall Sign          

#1   68.5 sq. ft.    
#2   150 sq. ft.    
#3   28.2 sq. ft. 
Total Wall Signs 246.7 sq. ft.    200 sq. ft. allowable 

  
The total sign area requested for the monument sign, the three on-site directional signs 
and the three wall-mounted signs is 357.1 sq. ft.  The combined total of the individual 
‘allowable’ signs area (including the Anthem at Merrill Ranch PUD monument sign 
increase) is 266 sq. ft.; however, the total sign area allowed per the Town of Florence 
Development Code is limited to 232 sq. ft. The total deviation requested is 125.1 sq. ft. 
greater than the current allowable sign area and up to 1’ 2” for the height of the three 
Directional Signs. 
 
Analysis: 
 
The function of a hospital is unique when compared to other ‘commercial’ or ‘office’ land 
uses.  Unlike its commercial and office counterparts, a hospital focuses on emergency 
and high stress situations.  Whether it’s an emergency vehicle accessing the facility or 



Subject:  Florence Hospital Comprehensive Sign Plan       Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
               PZ-18-36-DR 
Page 10 of 11 
 

someone visiting an ill or incapacitated family member or friend, the ability to easily 
recognize traffic routes and access points of the facility is paramount.  The increase in 
easily readable sign area and height will assist in lessening the stress placed upon the 
user.  In addition, these deviations from the current Development Code standards will 
allow for clearer understanding of the hierarchy of uses and situations related to 
navigating the site. 
 
The development of a hospital within a community is uncommon for a small town, staff 
does not believe that adding a specific sign section or exemptions to the sign code is 
necessary so long as the Comprehensive Sign Package process remains intact within the 
Development Code.  This will allow for a case-by-case evaluation of unique proposals as 
the Town continues to grow and develop. 
 
Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation: 
 
The Town of Florence Planning and Zoning Commission heard this item at their January 
3, 2019 meeting and voted unanimously to recommend approval subject to the conditions 
noted: 
 

1. Construction of the monument sign and all other signage for the site shall conform 
to the exhibits presented to the Planning and Zoning Commission on January 3, 
2019 and the Town Council on January 22, 2019 as may be amended by the 
conditions of approval.  The final monument sign location must be approved by the 
Town Engineer. 

 
2. Project to comply with Anthem at Merrill Ranch PUD and applicable Town Codes, 

including all applicable planning, building, fire and engineering requirements. 
 

3. All monument signage will be located outside the sight visibility triangle. 
 

4. Any expansion of any exterior signage shall be subject to Design Review approval.  
All new signage will be addressed in an amended Comprehensive Sign Plan that 
will be submitted for Planning and Zoning Commission review and approval prior 
to any new sign permits requests for the project. 

 
5. Design Review approval shall expire one year from the Town Council approval 

unless project is under permit and construction commences prior to such time. 
 

6. Any additional conditions deemed necessary.  
 
Public Participation: 
 
Under Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 9, Section-462.04 and per the Town of Florence 
Development Code, a public hearing is not required for a Design Review application.  
 
 



Subject:  Florence Hospital Comprehensive Sign Plan       Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
               PZ-18-36-DR 
Page 11 of 11 
 

A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

The Comprehensive Sign Plan is not approved, and the Florence Hospital would have to 
submit a new plan. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Comprehensive Sign Plan is approved, and the signs may be installed once the 
appropriate permits have been approved. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The re-opening of the Florence Hospital will have beneficial financial impacts for the Town 
of Florence and the Anthem community through its presence and the satellite businesses 
that it will help attract. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Sign Plan Submittal 



PHONE: 602.810.1546

ADDRESS: 24654 N. Lake Pleasant Pkwy.,
                    Suite 103 / 564
                    Peoria, AZ 85383

EMAIL: designgraphics@cox.net

PAGE:

OF

PROJECT ITEM NAME:

PROJECT:

PROJECT: ADDRESS:

SALESMAN:

PHONE:

DESIGNER:

DATE:

SCALE:REVISION#:

SCALE:

SCALE:

THIS CUSTOM DESIGN SUBMITTED FOR YOUR USE, IS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF DESIGN  GRAPHICS, 

LLC OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA. IT MAY NOT BE  REPRODUCED, COPIED, OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION TO 

ANYONE OUTSIDE OF YOUR ORGANIZATION WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF DESIGN GRAPHICS, LLC. 5

1

2

3

4

SIGN TYPE:

SIZE:
602.810.1546

SKIP BERG
C SHORT

PROJECT ITEM NO.:

PROJECT NAME:

EMERGENCY
MAIN ENTRANCE

MONUMENT 2: MAIN ENTRANCESMG Scale:  1/2” = 1’ - 0”

1   9

MONU-1

SMGFL - MONUMONUMENT

MAIN ENTRANCE
MONUMENT
SIGNAGE

11-23-2018

11-26-2018
1/2” = 1’ - 0”

5.0’ X 10.0’

4545 Hunt Hwy, FLORENCE, AZ 85132

FLORENCE HOSPITAL 

EXISTING
MONUMENT
SCALE: NONE

NORTH VIEW

END
VIEW

10’ - 0”
5

’ -
 5

”

           
copy: VINYL MATCH pms 653 blue

copy  VINYL MATCH pms 653 blue

logo: VINYL MATCH pms 653 blue,
cut-out to show white acrylic copy

COPY: PAINT BACKGOUND RED, WITH
ROUT-OUT 6.75” COPy, 5.25” ARROW, 
WHITE ACRYLIC backing, PAINT 
ENDS TO MATCH RED VINYL

         
BOTTOM STRIP: PAINT 4.75” COPy,
3” ARROW, white ACRYLIC backing
PAINT ENDS TO  MATCH 
PMS 653 BLUE

4” REVEAL: PAINT TO MATCH 
PMS 653 BLUE

ALL BLUES MUST MATCH ON SIGN, 
COPY ON TOP BLUE STRIP ON BOTTOM

MANUFACTURE: ONE (1) 5’ X 10’ X 18”
DOUBLE-FACED ILLUMINATED
MONUMENT SIGN

CABINET: ALUMINUM,  1-1/2” RETAINERS, 
PAINT white, ACRYLIC white FACE, 
FLORESCENT TUBING or l.e.d’s
FOR ILLUMINATION  

4”

4
’ -

 6
”

7’ - 4” EXISTING

E
X
IS

T
IN

G

12-03-2018r2



PHONE: 602.810.1546

ADDRESS: 24654 N. Lake Pleasant Pkwy.,
                    Suite 103 / 564
                    Peoria, AZ 85383

EMAIL: designgraphics@cox.net

PAGE:

OF

PROJECT ITEM NAME:

PROJECT:

PROJECT: ADDRESS:

SALESMAN:

PHONE:

DESIGNER:

DATE:

SCALE:REVISION#:

SCALE:

SCALE:

THIS CUSTOM DESIGN SUBMITTED FOR YOUR USE, IS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF DESIGN  GRAPHICS, 

LLC OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA. IT MAY NOT BE  REPRODUCED, COPIED, OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION TO 

ANYONE OUTSIDE OF YOUR ORGANIZATION WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF DESIGN GRAPHICS, LLC. 5

1

2

3

4

SIGN TYPE:

SIZE:
602.810.1546

SKIP BERG
C SHORT

PROJECT ITEM NO.:

PROJECT NAME:

EMERGENCY
MAIN ENTRANCE

MONUMENT 2: MAIN ENTRANCESMG Scale:  1/2” = 1’ - 0”

2   9

MONU-1

SMGFL - MONUMONUMENT

MAIN ENTRANCE
MONUMENT
SIGNAGE

11-23-2018

1/2” = 1’ - 0”

5.0’ X 10.0’

4545 Hunt Hwy, FLORENCE, AZ 85132

FLORENCE HOSPITAL 

EXISTING
MONUMENT
SCALE: NONE

SOUTH VIEW

END
VIEW

10’ - 0”
5

’ -
 5

”

           
copy: VINYL MATCH pms 653 blue

copy  VINYL MATCH pms 653 blue

logo: VINYL MATCH pms 653 blue,
cut-out to show white acrylic copy

COPY: PAINT BACKGOUND RED, WITH
ROUT-OUT 6.75” COPy, 5.25” ARROW, 
WHITE ACRYLIC backing, PAINT 
ENDS TO MATCH RED VINYL

         
BOTTOM STRIP: PAINT 4.75” COPy,
3” ARROW, white ACRYLIC backing
PAINT ENDS TO  MATCH 
PMS 653 BLUE

4” REVEAL: PAINT TO MATCH 
PMS 653 BLUE

ALL BLUES MUST MATCH ON SIGN, 
COPY ON TOP BLUE STRIP ON BOTTOM

MANUFACTURE: ONE (1) 5’ X 10’ X 18”
DOUBLE-FACED ILLUMINATED
MONUMENT SIGN

CABINET: ALUMINUM,  1-1/2” RETAINERS, 
PAINT white, ACRYLIC white FACE, 
FLORESCENT TUBING or l.e.d’s
FOR ILLUMINATION  

4”

4
’ -

 6
”

7’ - 4” EXISTING

E
X
IS

T
IN

G

12-03-2018r2



PHONE: 602.810.1546

ADDRESS: 24654 N. Lake Pleasant Pkwy.,
                    Suite 103 / 564
                    Peoria, AZ 85383

EMAIL: designgraphics@cox.net

PAGE:

OF

PROJECT ITEM NAME:

PROJECT:

PROJECT: ADDRESS:

SALESMAN:

PHONE:

DESIGNER:

DATE:

SCALE:REVISION#:

SCALE:

SCALE:

THIS CUSTOM DESIGN SUBMITTED FOR YOUR USE, IS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF DESIGN  GRAPHICS, 

LLC OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA. IT MAY NOT BE  REPRODUCED, COPIED, OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION TO 

ANYONE OUTSIDE OF YOUR ORGANIZATION WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF DESIGN GRAPHICS, LLC. 5

1

2

3

4

SIGN TYPE:

SIZE:
602.810.1546

SKIP BERG
C SHORT

PROJECT ITEM NO.:

PROJECT NAME:

EMERGENCY

3  9

MONU-2

MONUMENT 2: EMERGENCY

84”

46”

4”

4545 Hunt Hwy, FLORENCE, AZ 85132

SMGFL - MONU
MONUMENT

5.5’ X 10’ X 12”

FLORENCE HOSPITAL 
“EMERGENCY”

MONUMENT 
SIGN

11-21-2018

11-26-2018r1
1/2” = 1’ - 0”

SMG Scale:  1/2” = 1’ - 0”

1/8” = 1’ - 0”
11-27-2018r2

15”

12”

31”

6”

MANUFACTURE:   ONE (1)  50” X 7’ X 12” 
SINGLE-FACED ILLUMINATED MONUMENT SIGN

CABINET:   ALUMINUM, 1-1/2”  RETAINERS, white
acrylic face on front aluminum on back

COPY: PMS 653 BLUE VINYL OVERLAY

COPY: PMS 653 BLUE VINYL OVERLAY

LOGO: PMS 653 BLUE VINYL OVERLAY, 
         NAME WHITE COPY

bottom of cabinet: PAINT FACE and
side ENDS red,  6” COPY, ROUT-OUT, 
back with WHITE ACRYLIC

                 BOTTOM REVEAL: 4” X 70” X 12” 
                 ALUMINUM, PAINT MATCH 
                 PMS 653 BLUE

                 ILLUMINATION:  WHITE l.e.d.’s 

FRONT VIEWEND VIEW

EXISTING
EMERGENCY
ENTRANCE:
SCALE: NONE

12-03-2018r3



PHONE: 602.810.1546

ADDRESS: 24654 N. Lake Pleasant Pkwy.,
                    Suite 103 / 564
                    Peoria, AZ 85383

EMAIL: designgraphics@cox.net

PAGE:

OF

PROJECT ITEM NAME:

PROJECT:

PROJECT: ADDRESS:

SALESMAN:

PHONE:

DESIGNER:

DATE:

SCALE:REVISION#:

SCALE:

SCALE:

THIS CUSTOM DESIGN SUBMITTED FOR YOUR USE, IS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF DESIGN  GRAPHICS, 

LLC OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA. IT MAY NOT BE  REPRODUCED, COPIED, OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION TO 

ANYONE OUTSIDE OF YOUR ORGANIZATION WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF DESIGN GRAPHICS, LLC. 5

1

2

3

4

SIGN TYPE:

SIZE:
602.810.1546

SKIP BERG
C SHORT

PROJECT ITEM NO.:

PROJECT NAME:

EMERGENCY
MAIN ENTRANCE

EMERGENCY
MAIN ENTRANCE

12-03-2018r2

Sign 1

4   9

WDIR-1

DIRECTIONAL 1: ENTRANCE WAYFINDING DIRECTIONAL

MANUFACTURE:   ONE (1) 4’ X 4’ X 10” 
SINGLE-FACED ILLUMINATED WAYFINDING DIRECTIONAL SIGN

CABINET: ALUMINUM,  1-1/2” RETAINERS, PAINT white, ACRYLIC FACE,  
WHITE L.E.D. ILLUMINATION

BOTTOM REVEAL: 4” X 44” X 6”  ALUMINUM, PAINT MATCH PMS 653 BLUE

4545 Hunt Hwy, FLORENCE, AZ 85132

SMGFL - WDIR
DIRECTIONAL

FLORENCE HOSPITAL ENTRANCE
WAYFINDING
DIRECTIONAL

SIGNAGE

11-21-2018

3/4” = 1’ - 0”

SMG Scale:  3/4” = 1’ - 0”

Scale:  1/4” = 1’ - 0’

48”

48”

FRONT VIEW

COPY: PMS 653 BLUE VINYL OVERLAY

COPY: PMS 653 BLUE VINYL OVERLAY

LOGO: PMS 653 BLUE VINYL OVERLAY, 
         NAME WHITE COPY
                   
           

COPY: PAINT RED, FACE AND
         SIDES, ROUT-OUT 4” COPy 
         AND 3.75” ARROW, WHITE 
         ACRYLIC BACKING       

BOTTOM STRIP:  
         PAINT FACE AND SIDES 
         to MATCH pms 653 BLUE
         ROUT-OUT 2.75” COPy 
         AND 1.75” ARROW, WHITE 
         ACRYLIC BACKING

1/4” = 1’ - 0”

EXISTING
DIRECTIONAL:

SCALE: NONE

48” X 48”

END VIEW

10”

16
”

7
” 4”

2.75”

2
1”

11-26-2018

4”



PHONE: 602.810.1546

ADDRESS: 24654 N. Lake Pleasant Pkwy.,
                    Suite 103 / 564
                    Peoria, AZ 85383

EMAIL: designgraphics@cox.net

PAGE:

OF

PROJECT ITEM NAME:

PROJECT:

PROJECT: ADDRESS:

SALESMAN:

PHONE:

DESIGNER:

DATE:

SCALE:REVISION#:

SCALE:

SCALE:

THIS CUSTOM DESIGN SUBMITTED FOR YOUR USE, IS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF DESIGN  GRAPHICS, 

LLC OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA. IT MAY NOT BE  REPRODUCED, COPIED, OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION TO 

ANYONE OUTSIDE OF YOUR ORGANIZATION WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF DESIGN GRAPHICS, LLC. 5

1

2

3

4

SIGN TYPE:

SIZE:
602.810.1546

SKIP BERG
C SHORT

PROJECT ITEM NO.:

PROJECT NAME:

EMERGENCY
MAIN ENTRANCE

EMERGENCY
MAIN ENTRANCE

5   9

WDIR-2

DIRECTIONAL 2: ENTRANCE WAYFINDING DIRECTIONAL

4545 Hunt Hwy, FLORENCE, AZ 85132

SMGFL - WDIR
DIRECTIONAL

48” X 48”

FLORENCE HOSPITAL ENTRANCE
WAYFINDING
DIRECTIONAL

SIGNAGE

11-21-2018

SMG

Scale:  3/16” = 1’ - 0’
48”

48”

DIR-2 FRONT VIEW

COPY: PMS 653 BLUE VINYL 
         OVERLAY

COPY: PMS 653 BLUE VINYL 
         OVERLAY

LOGO: PMS 653 BLUE VINYL 
         OVERLAY, NAME WHITE
         COPY
                  
COPY: PAINT RED, FACE AND
         SIDES, ROUT-OUT 
         4” COPy AND 2.75” ARROW, 
         WHITE ACRYLIC BACKING       

BOTTOM STRIP:  
         PAINT FACE AND SIDES TO 
         MATCH pms 653 BLUE
         ROUT-OUT 2.75” COPy AND
         1.75” ARROW, WHITE 
         ACRYLIC BACKING

DIR-2 END VIEW

10”

EXISTING DOUBLE-SIDED
DIRECTIONAL

SCALE: NONE

3/16” = 1’ - 0”

MANUFACTURE:   ONE (1) 4’ X 4’ X 10” 
DOUBLE-FACED ILLUMINATED WAYFINDING DIRECTIONAL SIGN

CABINET: ALUMINUM,  1-1/2” RETAINERS, PAINT white, ACRYLIC FACE,  
WHITE L.E.D. ILLUMINATION

BOTTOM REVEAL: 4” X 44” X 6”  ALUMINUM, PAINT MATCH PMS 653 BLUE

11-26-2018

4”

12-03-2018r2

16
”

7
”

2
1”

16
”

7
” 4”

2.75”

Scale:  3/4” = 1’ - 0”

3/4” = 1’ - 0”

Sign 2 - front



EXISTING DOUBLE-SIDED
DIRECTIONAL

SCALE: NONE

PHONE: 602.810.1546

ADDRESS: 24654 N. Lake Pleasant Pkwy.,
                    Suite 103 / 564
                    Peoria, AZ 85383

EMAIL: designgraphics@cox.net

PAGE:

OF

PROJECT ITEM NAME:

PROJECT:

PROJECT: ADDRESS:

SALESMAN:

PHONE:

DESIGNER:

DATE:

SCALE:REVISION#:

SCALE:

SCALE:

THIS CUSTOM DESIGN SUBMITTED FOR YOUR USE, IS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF DESIGN  GRAPHICS, 

LLC OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA. IT MAY NOT BE  REPRODUCED, COPIED, OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION TO 

ANYONE OUTSIDE OF YOUR ORGANIZATION WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF DESIGN GRAPHICS, LLC. 5

1

2

3

4

SIGN TYPE:

SIZE:
602.810.1546

SKIP BERG
C SHORT

PROJECT ITEM NO.:

PROJECT NAME:

EMERGENCY
MAIN ENTRANCE

EMERGENCY
MAIN ENTRANCE

6   9

WDIR-2

DIRECTIONAL 2: ENTRANCE WAYFINDING DIRECTIONAL

4545 Hunt Hwy, FLORENCE, AZ 85132

SMGFL - WDIR
DIRECTIONAL

48” X 48”

FLORENCE HOSPITAL ENTRANCE
WAYFINDING
DIRECTIONAL

SIGNAGE

11-21-2018

SMG

1/2” = 1’ - 0”

48”

48”

DIR-2 FRONT VIEWDIR-2 END VIEW

10”

Scale:  3/16” = 1’ - 0’

3/16” = 1’ - 0”

MANUFACTURE:   ONE (1) 4’ X 4’ X 10” 
DOUBLE-FACED ILLUMINATED WAYFINDING DIRECTIONAL SIGN

CABINET: ALUMINUM,  1-1/2” RETAINERS, PAINT white, ACRYLIC FACE,  
WHITE L.E.D. ILLUMINATION

BOTTOM REVEAL: 4” X 44” X 6”  ALUMINUM, PAINT MATCH PMS 653 BLUE

COPY: PMS 653 BLUE VINYL 
         OVERLAY

COPY: PMS 653 BLUE VINYL 
         OVERLAY

LOGO: PMS 653 BLUE VINYL 
         OVERLAY, NAME WHITE
         COPY
                  
COPY: PAINT RED, FACE AND
         SIDES, ROUT-OUT 
         4” COPy AND 2.75” ARROW, 
         WHITE ACRYLIC BACKING       

BOTTOM STRIP:  
         PAINT FACE AND SIDES TO 
         MATCH pms 653 BLUE
         ROUT-OUT 2.75” COPy AND
         1.75” ARROW, WHITE 
         ACRYLIC BACKING

11-26-2018

4”

12-03-2018r2

Sign 2 - back

16
”

7
”

2
1”

16
”

7
” 4”

2.75”

Scale:  3/4” = 1’ - 0”



PHONE: 602.810.1546

ADDRESS: 24654 N. Lake Pleasant Pkwy.,
                    Suite 103 / 564
                    Peoria, AZ 85383

EMAIL: designgraphics@cox.net

PAGE:

OF

PROJECT ITEM NAME:

PROJECT:

PROJECT: ADDRESS:

SALESMAN:

PHONE:

DESIGNER:

DATE:

SCALE:REVISION#:

SCALE:

SCALE:

THIS CUSTOM DESIGN SUBMITTED FOR YOUR USE, IS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF DESIGN  GRAPHICS, 

LLC OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA. IT MAY NOT BE  REPRODUCED, COPIED, OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION TO 

ANYONE OUTSIDE OF YOUR ORGANIZATION WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF DESIGN GRAPHICS, LLC. 5

1

2

3

4

SIGN TYPE:

SIZE:
602.810.1546

SKIP BERG
C SHORT

PROJECT ITEM NO.:

PROJECT NAME:

7   9

WAL-2

WALL 2: MAIN HOSPITAL SIGNAGE

30”

4545 Hunt Hwy, FLORENCE, AZ 85132

SMGFL - WAL
WALL

3’- 4” X 15’- 0”

FLORENCE HOSPITAL 
“MAIN”

ENTRANCE
SIGNAGE

11-21-2018

1/4” = 1’ - 0”

SMG

Scale:  1/16” = 1’ - 0’

1/16” = 1’ - 0”

13”

7.5’

5.0'

22’ -6”

Scale:  1/4” = 1’ - 0”

11-26-2018

MANUFACTURE:  ONE (1) SET ILLUMINATED PAN CHANNEL 
LETTERS AND LOGO PAN CHANNEL CABINET

30” LETTERS: .063 ALUMINUM, WHITE ACRYLIC FACES, VINYL
             OVERLAYS TO MATCH PMS 653 BLUE, 3” TO 5”
             RETURNS, PAINT TO MATCH PMS 653 BLUE, 
             WHITE L.E.D. ILLUMINATION

13” LETTERS: .063 ALUMINUM, WHITE ACRYLIC FACES, VINYL
             OVERLAYS TO MATCH PMS 653 BLUE, 3” TO 5”
             RETURNS, PAINT TO MATCH PMS 653 BLUE

60” LOGO: .063 ALUMINUM, WHITE ACRYLIC FACES, VINYL
             OVERLAYS TO MATCH PMS 653 BLUE, 3” TO 5”
             RETURNS, PAINT TO MATCH PMS 653 BLUE
                      
             INSTALLATION ON EXTERIOR FASCIA

12-05-2018r2

EXISTING
FASCIA:
SCALE: NONE



PHONE: 602.810.1546

ADDRESS: 24654 N. Lake Pleasant Pkwy.,
                    Suite 103 / 564
                    Peoria, AZ 85383

EMAIL: designgraphics@cox.net

PAGE:

OF

PROJECT ITEM NAME:

PROJECT:

PROJECT: ADDRESS:

SALESMAN:

PHONE:

DESIGNER:

DATE:

SCALE:REVISION#:

SCALE:

SCALE:

THIS CUSTOM DESIGN SUBMITTED FOR YOUR USE, IS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF DESIGN  GRAPHICS, 

LLC OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA. IT MAY NOT BE  REPRODUCED, COPIED, OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION TO 

ANYONE OUTSIDE OF YOUR ORGANIZATION WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF DESIGN GRAPHICS, LLC. 5

1

2

3

4

SIGN TYPE:

SIZE:
602.810.1546

SKIP BERG
C SHORT

PROJECT ITEM NO.:

PROJECT NAME:

21” LETTERS: .063 ALUMINUM, WHITE ACRYLIC FACES, VINYL
             OVERLAYS TO MATCH PMS 653 BLUE, 3” TO 5”
             RETURNS, PAINT TO MATCH PMS 653 BLUE, 
             WHITE L.E.D. ILLUMINATION

8.5” LETTERS: .063 ALUMINUM, WHITE ACRYLIC FACES, VINYL
             OVERLAYS TO MATCH PMS 653 BLUE, 3” TO 5”
             RETURNS, PAINT TO MATCH PMS 653 BLUE

42” LOGO: .063 ALUMINUM, WHITE ACRYLIC FACES, VINYL
             OVERLAYS TO MATCH PMS 653 BLUE, 3” TO 5”
             RETURNS, PAINT TO MATCH PMS 653 BLUE
                      
                            INSTALLATION ON EXTERIOR FASCIA

WAL-2

WALL 2: MAIN ENTRANCE

4545 Hunt Hwy, FLORENCE, AZ 85132

SMGFL - WAL
WALL

3’- 9” X 9’- 6”

FLORENCE HOSPITAL 
“MAIN”

ENTRANCE
SIGNAGE

11-26-2018

Scale: 3/8” = 1’ - 0”

Scale: 3/32” = 1’ - 0’

EXISTING
FASCIA:
SCALE: NONE

12-03-2018r1

21”

8.5”

5.25’

14’ -4”

SMG
4
2
.0

”

MANUFACTURE:  ONE (1) SET PAN CHANNEL LETTERS, ILLUMINATED ON FASCIA

12-05-2018r2

8   9

3/8” = 1’ - 0”

3/32” = 1’ - 0”



PHONE: 602.810.1546

ADDRESS: 24654 N. Lake Pleasant Pkwy.,
                    Suite 103 / 564
                    Peoria, AZ 85383

EMAIL: designgraphics@cox.net

PAGE:

OF

PROJECT ITEM NAME:

PROJECT:

PROJECT: ADDRESS:

SALESMAN:

PHONE:

DESIGNER:

DATE:

SCALE:REVISION#:

SCALE:

SCALE:

THIS CUSTOM DESIGN SUBMITTED FOR YOUR USE, IS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF DESIGN  GRAPHICS, 

LLC OF PHOENIX, ARIZONA. IT MAY NOT BE  REPRODUCED, COPIED, OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION TO 

ANYONE OUTSIDE OF YOUR ORGANIZATION WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF DESIGN GRAPHICS, LLC. 5

1

2

3

4

SIGN TYPE:

SIZE:
602.810.1546

SKIP BERG
C SHORT

PROJECT ITEM NO.:

PROJECT NAME:

AMBULANCE

9  9

WAL-1

WALL SIGN: AMBULANCE

13’ - 0”

26”

MANUFACTURE:  ONE (1) SET OF 26” PAN CHANNEL LETTERS
ILLUMINATED ON FASCIA

LETTERS: .063 ALUMINUM, WHITE ACRYLIC FACES, 
             red VINYL OVERLAYS or red acrylic faces
             5” RETAINERS, PAINT TO MATCH red vinyl

ILLUMINATION: WHITE L.E.D. ILLUMINATION

INSTALLATION: INSTALL ON EXTERIOR WALL

4545 Hunt Hwy, FLORENCE, AZ 85132

SMGFL - WAL
WALL

12” X 24’-0”

FLORENCE HOSPITAL 
“AMBULANCE”

WALL SIGN

11-21-2018

3/4” = 1’ - 0”

SMG

1/8” = 1’ - 0”

Scale:  1/8” = 1’ - 0’

EXISTING
FASCIA:
SCALE: NONE

11-26-2018r1

12-03-2018r2



TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
7c.  

MEETING DATE: January 22, 2019 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 

STAFF PRESENTER: Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst   

SUBJECT: Acceptance of FFY2018 Operation Stonegarden 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  
nd
Subject:  Acceptance of FFY2018 Operation Stonegarden Funds from AZDOHS   Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

(OPSG) Funds from Arizona Department of Homeland Security 
for OPSG Overtime and Mileage 

 2  Reading
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 

Motion to accept funds from Arizona Department of Homeland Security, in the amount 
of $161,000 for overtime wages, benefits and vehicle mileage to conduct OPSG border 
enforcement activities.  

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

The Florence Police Department was awarded funds as part of a cooperative effort to 
address constantly changing threats due to border-related crime and violence. The 
funds will be used for officer overtime wages/benefits and reimbursement for mileage 
expenses.  

A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

The Town of Florence will not accept $161,000 in grant funds from Arizona Department 
of Homeland Security. 

A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Town of Florence will accept $161,000 in grant funds from Arizona Department of 
Homeland Security. 



Subject:  Acceptance of FFY2018 Operation Stonegarden Funds from AZDOHS   Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no matching fund requirement for this grant. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Subrecipient Agreement 18-AZDOHS-OPSG-180429-01 

















































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
  7d. 

MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2019  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:   Brent Billingsley, Town Manager 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  
Subject: Clifford L. Mattice Employment Contract   Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
Page 1 of 2 

SUBJECT:   Approval of Town Attorney Employment Agreement 
with Clifford L. Mattice. 

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  Community Vitality       Economic Property    

 Leadership and Governance     Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Approval of an Employment Agreement with Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town Attorney advises the Town Council, Town Manager, Department Managers, 
and Boards and Commissions regarding legal matters affecting the Town of Florence.  
The Town Attorney researches local, state and federal law; prepares legal memoranda, 
opinions and agreements; and reviews and prepares filings in civil proceedings.  The 
Town Attorney also prosecutes criminal misdemeanor cases in the Town’s municipal 
court.  As prosecutor, the Town Attorney reviews and prepares long-form criminal 
charges, conducts pre-trials with defendants and their counsel, and conducts trials. 
 
The approval of a new employment contract for the Town Attorney is consistent with the 
objectives of the Leadership and Governance Key Priority Area in the Town of Florence 
Strategic Plan 2017-2022.  The activities provided under this contract promote public 
confidence in municipal governance.  Further, retaining the Town Attorney allows the 
Town to retain a high-quality employee to serve the Town’s citizens. 
 
Changes that would be effective upon adoption of the contract:  
 

 Contract will begin January 22, 2019. 
 The Contract will be for three years with a two-year renewal option. 
 Compensation is a 5% increase from current salary. 
 Notice would require 90 days, rather than 30. 
 One-hundred-dollar increase, per month, in the automobile allowance.  



Subject: Clifford L. Mattice Employment Contract   Meeting Date:  January 22, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

The existing Town Attorney Employment Agreement with Clifford L. Mattice would 
expire on or about June 30, 2019.   
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Town Council retains the employment of Clifford L. Mattice, pursuant to a new 
employment contract running through January 31, 2022.  The employee would serve as 
the Town Attorney and Town Prosecutor pursuant to the new agreement. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The contract provides for the annual salary of $133,127, plus all benefits payable to full-
time employees of the Town.  The employee participates in the Arizona State 
Retirement System and will be entitled to receive any cost of living increases, stipends 
or base adjustment increases granted to other full-time employees. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Town Attorney Employment Agreement. 



Page 1 of 7 

TOWN ATTORNEY EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT EXTENSION 
 
 

THIS EXTENSION EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Extension 
Agreement” or “Agreement”) is made and entered into this 22 day of January, 2019 by 
and between the TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation, 
hereinafter referred to as “TOWN” or “TOWN COUNCIL” or “COUNCIL”, and  
CLIFFORD L. MATTICE, hereinafter referred to as “EMPLOYEE” or 
“ATTORNEY”, both of whom understand as follows: 
 
 Recitals: 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to secure the services of the Employee, the Town desires to 
enter into an agreement embodying the terms of such employment (the “Agreement”); 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Employee desires to accept such employment and enter into 
such Agreement. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein 
contained, and for such other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
  
SECTION 1.  DUTIES 
 
A. Council hereby agrees to employ Employee as Town Attorney and Employee 
agrees to assume the powers and perform the function and duties specified in Florence 
Town Code Title III, Chapter 31, §31.045 et seq., including but not limited to:  

 
i. The drafting and/or review and certification of all ordinances and contracts 

or other legal documents enacted by the Mayor and Council as required by Arizona law 
and the Florence Town Code. 
 

ii. Legal advice to the Council, Town Manager and Departments on an as 
needed basis or as requested by the Council, Town Manager or Department supervisors. 
 

iii. Prosecution of all criminal complaints filed in Florence Magistrate Court 
except in the event of a conflict as defined by Rule 42 of the Rules of the Arizona 
Supreme Court – Rules of Professional Conduct. 
 

iv. Attendance at all regular council meetings, and other meetings as 
requested by the Council or Manager. 
 

v. The defense or prosecution of all civil actions involving the Town and its 
various departments as directed by the Council and Manager, except in the event of a 
conflict as defined by Rule 42 of the Rules of the Arizona Supreme Court – Rules of 
Professional Conduct. 
 



Page 2 of 7 

vi. Such other legal services as required by the Town other than those which 
the Council and Attorney agree require special expertise and should be referred to 
another attorney; and 
 
Employee further agrees that he will discharge such responsibilities in a manner which is 
customary to the profession of attorneys and practice of law. Employee agrees that he 
will at all times exercise the appropriate degree of professional care in the discharge of 
his duties, that he will keep the Mayor and Council informed as to legal matters which 
are of concern to the Town or the Council and will endeavor to effectively advise the 
Town’s departments and employees. 

 
B. Employee will devote his full time, efforts and attention to his employment as 
Town Attorney. During his employment, the Town Attorney shall not, without the prior 
consent of the Town Manager, directly or indirectly render services which are similar in 
nature to the duties to be performed by Town Attorney under this Agreement to or for 
any other person, firm or entity. The Town Attorney may devote a reasonable amount of 
time to civic and community activities and to participating in professional organizations 
related to the profession of attorneys and practice of law.  It shall not be a violation of 
this Agreement for the Employee to (i) serve on civic or charitable boards or committees, 
and (ii) deliver lectures or fulfill speaking engagements at educational institutions and for 
continuing legal education purposes. 

 
SECTION 2.  TERM 

 
A. The term of this Extension Agreement shall be three (3) years from January 1, 
2019 (“Effective Date” of the Extension Agreement) through December 31, 2021. One-
hundred eighty (180) days prior to the expiration of the Agreement, the Council shall 
again review the Agreement for renewal of a second term of two (2) years and shall so 
review the Agreement for renewal each successive term thereafter. 

 
B. Nothing in this Agreement, subject to Section 3 below, shall prevent, limit or 
otherwise interfere with the right of the Council to terminate the services of Employee at 
any time. 

 
C. Nothing in this Agreement, subject to Section 3 below, shall prevent, limit or 
otherwise interfere with the right of Employee to resign at any time from his position as 
Town Attorney. 
 
 
SECTION 3.  SEPARATION FROM SERVICE 
 
A. An affirmative vote of at least four (4) members of the Council may suspend the 
Employee from his duties as Town Attorney with full pay and benefits at any time during 
the term of this Agreement. 
 



Page 3 of 7 

B. The Council may terminate Employee at any time during the term of this 
Agreement, without any cause whatsoever, by an affirmative vote of at least four (4) 
members of the Council. 
 
C. In the event that Employee is involuntarily terminated by the Council before the 
expiration of any term of this Agreement, and at such time is willing and able to perform 
his duties under this Agreement, then Council shall give Employee ninety (90) days 
written notice prior to the effective date of termination, subject to subparagraph (D) 
below. During such ninety (90) day period, Employee shall be responsible for performing 
all his duties as Town Attorney under this Agreement, if so requested by the Council.   
 

i. At the end of such ninety (90) day period, Council agrees to pay Employee four 
months aggregate salary plus emoluments (payment of health insurance, life 
insurance, dental insurance, for the Employee and all dependents in the same amounts 
and in the same manner as full-time employees of the Employer and retirement 
benefits, including all benefits payable to classified employees of the Town per any 
Town personnel policies or regulations in force at the time the Agreement is 
executed), with such payments to be made periodically in the same manner as during 
the term of this Agreement. The payment of such health insurance, life insurance and 
retirement benefits shall cease at such time as Employee becomes re-employed. For 
purposes of this paragraph, “re-employment” is defined as the date as of which 
Employee has received compensation for legal services which is substantially 
equivalent to that required under this Agreement. 
 
ii. If Employee is terminated because of conviction of a felony or serious 
misdemeanor offense involving moral turpitude, then in such case, Town shall have 
no obligation to pay any severance sum(s) to Employee whatsoever, except any 
accrued, unpaid portion of Base Salary through the date of termination (to be paid 
within 3 days after date of termination) and all vested, nonforfeitable amounts owing 
and accrued at the date of termination under any and all compensation and benefit 
plans, programs, and arrangements (to be paid under the terms of the plan, program 
and arrangements). 

 
D. If Employee voluntarily resigns his position as Town Attorney before the 
expiration of any term of this Agreement, then Employee shall give the Town Ninety (90) 
days notice in advance of such resignation, unless the Employee and Council otherwise 
agree. In such case, Employee is not entitled to the payment of any severance sum 
whatsoever. 
 
E. As a condition precedent to receiving any severance payment described above, 
Employee and the Town shall - execute a severance agreement containing a mutual  
release acceptable to both parties, which shall contain at minimum the parties’ 1) full 
release of each other, and all of their respective agents and employees from any and all 
claims, including but not limited to demands, damages, causes of action or liability, 
whether at law or in equity, arising out of Employee’s employment or termination by 
Town, including employment or age discrimination actions, and 2) Employee’s 



Page 4 of 7 

agreement not to initiate or cause to be initiated any suit, claim, grievance, proceeding or 
investigation of any kind, under any contract, Agreement, statute or regulation pertaining 
to his employment with Town. 
 
SECTION 4.  SALARY AND COMPENSATION 
 
A. Town agrees to pay Employee for his services rendered pursuant to this Agreement, 

an annual salary of $133,127 payable in installments at the same time and in the same 
manner that other full-time employees of the Town are paid, plus all benefits payable 
to classified employees of the Town per any Town personnel policies or regulations 
in force at the time the Agreement is executed (the “Base Salary”).  Employee shall 
also be entitled to participate in the Arizona State Retirement System during the life 
of this Agreement and Employer agrees to make all matching contributions required 
by Arizona State Law.  Additionally, the Employer agrees to execute all necessary 
agreements for the Employee to participate in the Town-sponsored Section 457 Plan. 

 
B.  Any and all increases that full-time employees receive, including base adjustments, 

merit increases, and stipends shall be equally awarded to Employee. 
 

C. Automobile and Monthly Expense Allowance:  Employee’s duties require that he use 
his personally owned vehicle for Employer’s business.  Employer has recognized this 
by agreeing to pay to Employee $250.00 per month to reimburse Employee for all 
business use of his vehicle.  Employee shall be responsible for paying for liability, 
property damage and comprehensive insurance, and for the purchase, operation, 
maintenance, repair and replacement of said automobile. 

 
SECTION 5.  HOURS OF WORK 
 
A. It is recognized that Employee must devote a certain amount of time outside 
normal office hours to the business of the Town. Therefore, Town agrees that Employee 
may be allowed to adjust his hours as deemed appropriate by Employee so long as he is 
available, and the legal affairs of the Town are not harmed. Employee will make 
reasonable efforts to maintain office hours of 40 hours per week.  
 
SECTION 6.  PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
 
A. Town shall compensate Employee for all reasonable travel and business 
expenditures of Town Attorney in accordance with the general personnel policies of the 
Town, including but not limited to the payment of professional association dues, 
membership fees and expenses in civic organizations, subscriptions to professional 
periodicals and educational materials, and appropriate professional conferences. 
 
SECTION 7.  VACATION AND SICK LEAVE 
 
A. Employee shall earn four (4) weeks vacation per year beginning with the date this 
Agreement is executed. The Employee may accrue unused vacation time of up to 400 



Page 5 of 7 

hours and shall be eligible to use the Town’s newly approved “Vacation Buyback” 
Program.  Any such vacation time taken shall be coordinated with the Town’s 
departments and staff to ensure effective management of the Town during the Town 
Attorney’s vacation(s).  In the event of termination, either voluntarily or involuntarily, 
the Employee shall be compensated for all accrued and unused vacation time as of the 
date of termination, not to exceed 400 hours. 
 
B. Employee shall be entitled to accrue sick leave in the same manner provided to all 
other full-time Town employees. 
 
SECTION 8.  INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 
 
A. The Town shall maintain a comprehensive general liability, errors and omissions 
policy which protects the Employee from any and all claims associated with the 
reasonable performance of the Town Attorney’s duties.  The Town shall bear the full cost 
of any insurance, fidelity or other bonds required of Employee under any law or 
ordinance. 
 
B. The Town shall defend, save harmless and indemnify Employee against any tort, 
professional liability claim, or other demand or legal action, groundless or otherwise, 
whether arising at law or in equity, from any alleged act or omission occurring in the 
performance of Employee’s duties as Town Attorney. The Council may compromise and 
settle any such claim or suit in its sole discretion. 
 
SECTION 9.  NOTICES 
 
A. Any notices required to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be given by 
deposit in the custody of the Unites States Postal Service, postage prepaid, or through 
overnight carrier service, addressed as follows or as such address(es) may be changed 
from time to time upon notice to the other: 
 
  

Town:  Town of Florence 
   Town Clerk 

775 N. Main Street 
P.O. Box 2670 

   Florence, AZ 85132 
 
 Employee: Clifford L. Mattice 
   6837 North 15th Place 
   Phoenix, AZ 85014 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 7 

SECTION 10. BREACH OF AGREEMENT; ATTORNEY FEES; 
   VENUE 
 
A. In the event of a breach of this Agreement by either the Town or Employee 
resulting in damages to either party, that party may recover from the party breaching this 
Agreement all damages that may be sustained. 
 
B. In the event it becomes necessary for either party to bring legal action or suit to 
enforce any provision of this Agreement, the parties agree that the prevailing party shall 
be entitled to reasonable attorney fees and all costs of suit. 
 
C. The venue for any suit, claim, arbitration or other legal action pertaining to this 
Agreement shall be in Pinal County, Arizona. 
 
SECTION 11. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
A. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between Town and Employee. No 
other promises, representations, warranties or covenants have been relied upon by either 
Town or Employee in executing this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 12. ASSIGNMENT 
 
A. This Agreement is not assignable, either in whole or in part, by either Town or 
Employee. 
 
SECTION 13. INTERESTS OF HEIRS AND EXECUTORS  
 
A. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs at law 
and executors of Employee, if any. 
 
SECTION 14. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
A. This Agreement shall become effective as of the date of its execution by both the 
Town and Employee and shall replace and supersede any prior Agreements between the 
Town and Employee as of the effective date. 
 
B. If any provision or portion thereof of this Agreement is held unenforceable, 
invalid, unlawful or unconstitutional, the remainder of this Agreement shall be deemed 
severable, shall not be affected, and shall remain in full force and effect.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 7 of 7 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town of Florence has caused this Agreement to 
be signed and executed by and on its behalf by its Mayor, and duly attested by its Town 
Clerk, and Employee has signed and executed this Agreement the day and year first 
above written. 
 
 
TOWN OF FLORENCE: APPROVED AND ACCEPTED AS TO 

FORM: 
 
 
            
Tara Walter, Mayor    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney  
 
 
 
ATTEST:       
 
 
      
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 

 
 
 

        
  
 


	January 22, 2019 Agenda
	Page 2 
	Page 3

	5. PRESENTATIONS
	5a. Presentation on Upcoming Events
	5b. GIS Interactive Online Traffic Volume Map

	6. CONSENT
	6a. Coolidge Engine and Pump 1.22
	6b. Stonegarden Grant FFY18_Vehicle
	6c. Purchase AZDOHS HSGP 180303-01
	6d. RCA for Dickinson Wright Albert Acken
	6e. December 3, 2018 Council MInutes
	6f i. September 20, 2018 ACC Minutes
	6f i. October 11, 2018 ACC Minutes

	6f ii. November 7, 2018 HDAC Minutes
	6f iii. October 18, 2018 PZ MInutes
	6f iii. November 15, 2018 PZ Minutes
	6f iii. December 20, 2018 PZ Minutes


	7. NEW BUSINESS
	7a. 2019 Rules of Proceedure
	7b. Florence Hospital Signs
	7c. Stonegarden Grant FFY18
	7d. Town Attorney Contract




